

Bosideng International Holdings Limited (Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Stock Code: 3998

ANNUAL REPORT 2014/15



COMPANY PROFILE

Bosideng International Holdings Limited (the "Company", together with its subsidiaries, the "Group") is a renowned down apparel company in the People's Republic of China (the "PRC") with four core down apparel brands, namely Bosideng, Snow Flying, Combo and Bengen. The Group satisfies different customers and fosters its leading position in the PRC market through its core brands.

Leveraging on its down apparel business, the Group is actively propelling the strategy of developing an evergreen business for four seasons and proactively exploring opportunities to acquire non-down apparel brands with high development potential and good reputation, and stride toward becoming a world-renowned integrated apparel brand operator. Currently, key non-down apparel brands of the Group include Bosideng MAN, JESSIE ladies' wear and Mogao casual wear.

CONTENTS

- 2 Financial Highlights
- 4 Chairman's Statement
- 8 Management Discussion and Analysis
- 29 Corporate Governance Report
- 39 Directors and Senior Management
- 43 Report of Directors
- 57 Independent Auditor's Report
- 59 Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
- 61 Consolidated Balance Sheet
- 63 Balance Sheet
- 65 Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
- 66 Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
- 68 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
- 146 Corporate Information
- 148 Shareholder Information

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(All amounts in RMB thousands unless otherwise stated)

	For the y	For the year ended March 31,			
	2015	2014	2013		
Revenue	6,292,569	8,237,894	9,324,539		
Gross Profit	2,870,009	4,115,456	4,720,549		
Profit from operations	198,900	865,470	1,271,670		
Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company	132,197	694,704	1,078,650		
Non-current assets	2,765,824	2,900,778	2,540,443		
Current assets	9,722,882	9,857,414	9,672,764		
Current liabilities	3,919,967	2,807,280	3,634,987		
Net current assets	5,802,915	7,050,134	6,037,777		
Total assets	12,488,706	12,758,192	12,213,207		
Total assets less current liabilities	8,568,739	9,950,912	8,578,220		
Total equity	7,413,899	7,377,233	7,285,668		
Gross profit margin (%)	45.6	50.0	50.6		
Operating margin (%)	3.2	10.5	13.6		
Net profit margin (%)*	2.1	8.4	11.6		
Earnings per share					
– basic (RMB cents)	1.66	8.73	13.55		
– diluted (RMB cents)	1.65	8.72	13.55		

* Net profit margin is calculated by profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company as a percentage of revenue



Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders

RMB (million)



Basic Earnings Per Share

RMB (cents)



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

As the current domestic economy is in the cyclic period of transformation, coupled with the keen competition over the past few years leading to the excessive expansion of the industry and the resulting inventory problem, as well as the rapid development of the e-commerce platforms in recent years, all these have been changing the industry. In light of the changes of the market and the consumers' taste, the Group has introduced various development strategies, from brand separation, to the shift to non-seasonal products and retail transformation, with the expectation to get abreast of the times by means of adopting more scientific approaches in business management, so as to enable the Group to head for a much brighter future. Meanwhile, through frequent review of current strategies and subject to prompt adjustment in case of need, the Group emphasized on inventory clearance and channel optimization in this financial year to keep on perfecting and optimising its business so as to enhance competitiveness and lay a more solid foundation for the long-term development.

In this financial year, the Group reduced production to put inventory in good order, and shut down many underperforming sales channels. Though it has led to the decreased revenue of the down apparel and the profit drop of the Group, it has also provided a good forward-looking fundamental key for the entire business. The efficiency of self-operated stores has been on the rise again one after another. Moreover, the cash flow generated from operating activities throughout the year has resumed positive, reflecting the improvement in the business, compared to the previous year. Moreover, the Group has also made use of this opportunity to further optimise and define the brand positioning of the Group's four down apparel brands. Despite of the current industry fluctuation, the leading position of Bosideng in the domestic market has not been shaken after all. Having got through more than twenty years of development, the down apparel business of Bosideng experienced burgeoning growth and obtained the results highly acclaimed in the domestic apparel sector. As the business continues to grow, the Group has accumulated abundant experiences, resources and capital in the apparel industry. Therefore, the Group considers it the right moment to plan for the business on a more long-term basis and commence the exploration for the substantial development of the enterprise in various aspects. The diversification from the sheer down apparel to other apparel products is the obvious choice in the course of development. Thus, in recent years, the Group has made prudent and practical move from seasonal products towards non-seasonal and multi-brands gradually.

The domestic economy remains uncertain with the growth slowing down in a short term perspective. However, the domestic social reform and industrial upgrade will bring about the growth of the middle class in China. In the long run, the apparel industry still enjoys unlimited development potentials. I believe that with the whole-hearted efforts of all personnel of the Group, Bosideng will definitely be on its growth track again to achieve its sustainable business growth and head for the goal of becoming a worldwide operator highly respected and renowned for its comprehensive clothing brands. On behalf of the Group, I hereby express my most heart-felt thanks to all employees and management teams for their dedicated work last year. Meanwhile, I would like to express my deepest gratitude for all shareholders' on-going support and trust!

Gao Dekang

Chairman of the Board June 29, 2015







In this financial year, the Group further reformed its business and conducted a comprehensive review on each link of its business, and pragmatically made inventory clearance and retail network optimization its top priority. In face of large inventories and inefficient retail outlets resulting from the brand separation strategy adopted in the past, the Group actively implemented inventories reduction measures and closed down underperforming stores decisively. Through significant business adjustment, the Group laid a more robust business foundation for future development, which will enable the Group to transit gradually from traditional wholesale business model to market and consumer-oriented retail model, improving the guality of the retail terminal comprehensively to ensure a sustainable and healthy growth.

REVENUE ANALYSIS

Affected by domestic macroeconomic environment and unfavorable weather conditions, coupled with the Group's active business adjustment during the year to clear inventories and optimize its retail network, the overall revenue decreased. For the year ended March 31, 2015, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately RMB6,292.6 million, representing a decrease of 23.6% as compared with last year. During the year, branded down apparel business continued to be the biggest revenue source of the Group, accounting for 64.8% of the Group's revenue, with the remaining 16.1% and 19.1% derived from non-down apparel business and OEM management business, respectively. For the year ended March 31, 2014, the above three businesses accounted for 73.5%, 15.8% and 10.7% of the Group's revenue, respectively.

The revenue from branded down apparel business, OEM management business and non-down apparel business were approximately RMB4,079.9 million, RMB1,201.8 million and RMB1,010.9 million, representing a decrease of 32.6% as compared with last year, increase of 36.5% and decrease of 22.3%, respectively.







Branded Down Apparel Business:

The top priority of the Group was to clear inventories and optimize its retail network in this financial year. To reduce inventories, the Group reduced the annual production volume of new products by more than 10% to make more room to reduce existing inventories, for individual brands such as Bengen and Combo, only very few new designs were developed. In terms of order management, the Group implemented strict order control on distributors, through close weekly communication with distributors, rolling forecast and analysis according to actual sales were made to assist distributors to make more reasonable orders and replacement orders. During the year, the Group based on the actual situation of distributors and proactively reduced orders from distributors by approximately 10% to 20% to reduce inventories risk in retail channel. For old inventories, the Group added sale channels that specialized in inventories clearance, including making promotion through discount stores, temporary promotional stores, chain stores, large-scale bargains in villages and towns in remote areas and factory stores.

The above measures helped the Group to improve its business performance, reduced inventories and avoided new inventory backlog, but inevitably impacted the revenue of this financial year. On the other hand, as the weather was warmer than that of the previous years, the Group recorded unsatisfactory sales performance during the traditional peak season before the Chinese New Year, which led to a revenue decline of branded down apparel business by 32.6% during the year. However, the down apparel inventories of the Group (excluding the non-seasonal products of the branded down apparel) at the end of the year decreased by 8.9% as compared with last year, which shown that the inventories is declining. The Group is confident that the inventories will get back to a healthier level.

	For the year ended March 31,					
	20	15	201	4		
		% of branded		% of branded		
	RMB	down apparel	RMB	down apparel		
Brands	Million	revenue	Million	revenue	Changes	
Bosideng	3,225.0	79.0%	4,047.8	66.9%	-20.3%	
Snow Flying	478.9	11.7%	1,025.1	16.9%	-53.3%	
Bengen	72.4	1.8%	347.3	5.7%	-79.2%	
Combo	157.1	3.9%	453.7	7.5%	-65.4%	
Other brands	66.4	1.6%	92.2	1.5%	-28.0%	
Others	80.1	2.0%	90.6	1.5%	-11.6%	
Total revenue from branded						
down apparel	4,079.9	100.0%	6,056.7	100.0%	-32.6%	

Revenue from down apparel business by brand

During the year, the Group re-positioned and re-branded the four down apparel brands with reference to various factors such as market and consumer demand and sales records. Bengen and Combo were re-positioned as regional brands, with Combo mainly concentrated in Shandong, Hunan and Shaanxi. A large number of inefficient sales outlets resulted from the brand separation strategy implemented in the past few years were closed, which led to a decline in the overall coverage of sales channel. For the purpose of reducing inventories, the Group focused on selling old goods and produced very few new designs during the year, as a result, revenue from Bengen and Combo brands decreased significantly by 79.2% and 65.4%, respectively. For Bosideng and Snow Flying brands, which continued to be national brands, the Group was committed to provide consumers with cost-effective, high quality and fashionable products while clearing inventories.

	For the year ended March 31,					
	20	15	201	14		
		% of branded		% of branded		
	RMB	down apparel	RMB	down apparel		
	Million	revenue	Million	revenue	Changes	
Self-operated	2,080.3	51.0%	2,167.4	35.8%	-4.0%	
Wholesale	1,919.5	47.0%	3,798.7	62.7%	-49.5%	
Others*	80.1	2.0%	90.6	1.5%	-11.6%	
Total revenue from branded						
down apparel business	4,079.9	100.0%	6,056.7	100.0%	-32.6%	

Revenue from branded down apparel business by sale category

* Represents sales of raw materials related to down apparel products and other licensing fee, etc.

During the year, the Group optimized its retail network proactively, emphasized on improving store quality and enhancing consumer experience, so as to pave the way for retail transformation. Therefore, the Group cleared up and integrated sale channels of each down apparel brand to avoid channel overlapping by inspecting and assessing the location of each store during low season in order to rationalise the retail network. Meanwhile, retail outlets with sales weaker than expected or its image and service failed to meet the Group's requirements were closed, those were mainly the retail outlets operated by third-party distributors. This measure has led to revenues of self-operated and wholesale business decreasing by 4.0% and 49.5%, respectively.

During the year, despite the fact that self-operated outlets of down apparel business significantly reduced, the sales volume of self-operated business increased significantly by 23.6% to 6.8 million from 5.5 million pieces of down apparel products last year, reflecting an improvement in store efficiency. Revenue from self-operated business decreased slightly by 4.0%, it was mainly due to the increase in the sale contribution of autumn down apparel whose price is lower than that of traditional down apparel, and the increase in the sale contribution of the old stock as a result of the inventories promotion, reflecting that the Group has achieved certain results in inventory liquidation.





As at March 31, 2015, the total number of retail outlets of the Group's down apparel business (net) decreased by 5,053 to 6,599 as compared to that of March 31, 2014. Self-operated retail outlets (net) decreased by 1,296 to 2,527 during the year; retail outlets operated by third-party distributors (net) decreased by 3,757 to 4,072. The number of self-operated retail outlets as a percentage of the overall retail network increased to 38.3% from 32.8% at the end of March 2014.

	Bosid	eng	Snow I	lying	Com	nbo	Beng	gen	Tota	al*
	Number of		Number of		Number of		Number of		Number of	
As at March 31, 2015	stores	Change								
Cancialty stays										
Specialty stores	390	1	84	-91	14	-14	2	-17	490	-123
Operated by the Group		277								
Operated by third party distributors	2,068	-367	405	-313	104	-366	182	-510	2,759	-1,919
Subtotal	2,458	-366	489	-404	118	-380	184	-527	3,249	-2,042
Concessionary retail outlets										
Operated by the Group	1,090	-145	548	-384	300	-537	99	-104	2,037	-1,173
Operated by third party distributors	649	-63	277	-256	255	-734	132	-577	1,313	-1,838
Subtotal	1,739	-208	825	-640	555	-1,271	231	-681	3,350	-3,011
Total	4,197	-574	1,314	-1,044	673	-1,651	415	-1,208	6,599	-5,053

Retail network breakdown by down apparel brand

Change: Compared with that as at March 31, 2014

* As at March 31, 2014, the Group's down apparel retail network included a total of 576 retail outlets of other small down apparel brands, and all retail outlets under these brands were closed down during the year.

Retail network of down apparel business breakdown by region

	As at	As at	
	March 31,	March 31,	
	2015	2014	Change
			10000
Eastern China area	2,487	4,615	-2,128
Central China area	1,221	2,411	-1,190
Northern China area	731	1,285	-554
Northeast China area	767	1,274	-507
Northwest China area	768	1,206	-438
Southwest China area	625	861	-236
Total	6,599	11,652	-5,053

Areas:

Eastern China area: Jiangsu, Anhui, Zhejiang, Shanghai, Fujian, Shandong Central China area: Hubei, Hunan, Henan, Jiangxi, Guangdong, Guangxi, Hainar Northern China area: Beijing, Tianjin, Hebei Northeast China area: Liaoning, Jilin, Heilongjiang, Inner Mongolia Northwest China area: Xinjiang, Gansu, Qinghai, Shaanxi, Ningxia, Shanxi Southwest China area: Sichuan, Tibet, Chongging, Yunnan, Guizhou

OEM Management Business:

During the year, the revenue from the Group's OEM management business increased by 36.5% year on year to approximately RMB1,201.8 million as compared with last year, as the Group's major customers launched new product series during the year, thus generating more orders for the Group.

OEM management business had 13 clients during the year, which were mainly well-known US brands. Revenue from the top five customers accounted for approximately 80.0% of the revenue from the OEM management business.





Non-down Apparel Business:

The revenue from the Group's non-down apparel business decreased by 22.3% to approximately RMB1,010.9 million as compared with last year. During the year, the Group continued to adjust the sales channels, reduce inventory and optimize product portfolio of its non-down apparel brands. The revenue of non-down apparel business is as follows:

		For the year ended	March 31,		
	2015		2014		
		% of		% of	
		non-down		non-down	
	RMB	apparel	RMB	apparel	
Brand	million	revenue	million	revenue	Changes
Bosideng MAN	275.8	27.3%	478.2	36.8%	-42.3%
JESSIE	320.2	31.7%	348.4	26.8%	-8.1%
Mogao	397.4	39.3%	446.8	34.3%	-11.1%
Others	17.5	1.7%	27.3	2.1%	-35.9%
Total non-down apparel					
revenue	1,010.9	100.0%	1,300.7	100.0%	-22.3%

Revenue breakdown by non-down apparel brand

Bosideng MAN

Revenue of Bosideng MAN decreased by 42.3% to approximately RMB275.8 million as compared with last year. Of which, the revenue of self-operated and wholesale business decreased by 45.0% and 41.5% year on year to approximately RMB61.3 million and RMB214.5 million, respectively. Due to the fact that the products of domestic menswear industry were confronted with serious homogenization problems leading to significant price reduction in many menswear brands. Bosideng MAN implemented a more defined product planning which included streamlining product portfolio, narrowing the price range, and offering value-for-money products in order to standardize product styling and to maintain competitiveness. Moreover, the wholesale business of Bosideng MAN focused in selling old inventory and offered bigger discount to distributors in order to clear inventories.

In addition, the Group continued to streamline its retail network for Bosideng MAN. As at March 31, 2015, the total number of menswear retail outlets (net) decreased by 25 to 567, of which, the number of self-operated retail outlets (net) decreased by 38 to 70 and the number of third party distributor-operated retail outlets (net) increased by 13 to 497.

JESSIE

Revenue of JESSIE decreased by 8.1% to approximately RMB320.2 million as compared with last year. Of which, the revenue of selfoperated and wholesale business increased by 20.8% and decreased by 51.3% year on year to approximately RMB252.2 million and RMB68.0 million, respectively. Priority of JESSIE for the year was to continuously adjust retail network by slowing down new store opening and closing down underperforming retail outlets. Meanwhile, the Group carried out fine management for selfoperated outlets and significantly increased self-operated revenue through adjusting product portfolio, increasing the proportion of accessories to achieve connective sales.

As at March 31, 2015, the total number of JESSIE retail outlets (net) decreased by 15 to 211, of which, the number of self-operated retail outlets (net) increased by 4 to 113 and the number of third party distributor-operated retail outlets (net) decreased by 19 to 98.

Mogao

Revenue of Mogao decreased by 11.1% to approximately RMB397.4 million as compared with last year. Of which, the revenue of self-operated and wholesale business decreased by 10.3% and 15.2% year on year to approximately RMB336.0 million and RMB61.4 million, respectively. Taking into account the market competition and weaker sales of Mogao ladieswear than menswear, which resulted in inconsistent operational efficiency, therefore, Mogao transformed from the original menswear and ladieswear to menswear brand in the second half of the year, which helped to enhance the operating capacity of Mogao and allowed a better use of resources. Without ladieswear, Mogao rebranded into a fashionable menswear "FASHION Label", offering a clearer brand positioning, with product styles combining casual wear and fashion trends.

As at March 31, 2015, the total number of the Mogao retail outlets (net) decreased by 13 to 305, of which, the number of selfoperated retail outlets (net) decreased by 1 to 208 and the number of third party distributor-operated retail outlets (net) decreased by 12 to 97.

	Bosideng	ΜΑΝ	JESS		Мос		Tota	*
	Number of	IVIAIN	Number of		Number of	Jau	Number of	
As at March 31, 2015	stores	Change	stores	Change	stores	Change	stores	Change
Specialty stores								
Operated by the Group	24	-8	3	-	-	-	27	-9
Operated by third party distributors	261	-27	37	-6	97	-12	395	-45
Subtotal	285	-35	40	-6	97	-12	422	-54
Concessionary retail outlets								
Operated by the Group	46	-30	110	+4	208	-1	364	-50
Operated by third party distributors	236	+40	61	-13	_	-	297	+24
Subtotal	282	+10	171	-9	208	-1	661	-26
Total	567	-25	211	-15	305	-13	1,083	-80

Retail network breakdown by non-down apparel brand

Change: Compared with that as at March 31, 2014

* RICCI was a non-down apparel brand under the Group and had 27 retail outlets as at March 31, 2014. The Group has terminated the RICCI brand during the period under review.





	Retail network of	non-down	apparel	business	breakdown	by region
--	-------------------	----------	---------	----------	-----------	-----------

	As at March 31,	As at March 31,				
	2015	2014	Change			
Eastern China area	276	297	-21			
Central China area	311	322	-11			
Northern China area	61	64	-3			
Northeast China area	121	130	-9			
Northwest China area	146	168	-22			
Southwest China area	168	182	-14			
Total	1,083	1,163	-80			

Areas:

Eastern China area: Jiangsu, Anhui, Zhejiang, Shanghai, Fujian, Shandong Central China area: Hubei, Hunan, Henan, Jiangxi, Guangdong, Guangxi, Hainan Northern China area: Beijing, Tianjin, Hebei Northeast China area: Liaoning, Jilin, Heilongjiang, Inner Mongolia Northwest China area: Xinjiang, Gansu, Qinghai, Shaanxi, Ningxia, Shanxi Southwest China area: Sichuan, Tibet, Chongqing, Yunnan, Guizhou

International Business

Entering the third year of operation, with stronger operational and retail experience accumulated, London flagship store actively expanded the down apparel series during the year, after thorough study and with reference to market demand. By leveraging on the enormous resources and brand awareness of the Group in down apparel products, the Group introduced men's and ladies' down apparel, which not only enriched the product portfolio of the flagship store, and also effectively drove sales and profits.

Gross profit

During the year, gross profit dropped by 30.3% from RMB4,115.5 million last year to RMB2,870.0 million, and gross profit margin decreased by 4.4 percentage points to 45.6%.

The Group successfully controlled procurement price at a level more favourable than the market average through a series of measures such as resources integration, strategic partnership cooperation and low season procurement. In addition, the proportion of self-operated business increased in the branded down apparel business and non-down apparel business during the year, thus partly offseted the impact on gross margin due to the reduction in the production and increased promotion effort as a result of clearing inventories. The gross profit margin of branded down apparel business and non-down apparel business were 53.4% and 48.9%, respectively, similar to that of last year, slightly dropped by 1.0 and 0.1 percentage point, respectively as compared to last year. The gross profit margin of OEM management business for the year decreased by 4.4 percentage points to 16.6% due to the rising trend of Multistyle and Mini-capacity product strategy adopted by the garment industry, which increased production costs, thus impacting the gross profit margin.

Operating profit

During the year, the Group's operating profit decreased by 77.0% to approximately RMB198.9 million. Operating profit margin was 3.2%, representing a decrease of 7.3 percentage points as compared to 10.5% of last year.

Distribution expenses

The Group's distribution expenses, mainly comprising advertising and promotion expenses, concessionaire fees to department stores and salary and welfare, amounted to approximately RMB2,108.5 million, representing a decrease of 25.1%, as compared to approximately RMB2,813.6 million in the previous year. Of which, advertising and promotion expenses significantly dropped by 46.5%, due to the fact that the Group made better use of promotion resources, reduced advertisements on traditional television stations and highway billboards and increased the application of new media such as the Internet and social media. The new media strategy saved promotional costs and brought comprehensive marketing effects.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group, which mainly comprise salary and welfare, depreciation and office expenses, amounted to approximately RMB536.3 million, representing an increase of 16.7% from approximately RMB459.5 million in the previous year. The increase in administrative expenses was mainly attributable to the higher depreciation due to the full operation of Bosideng building in Changshu, and lower provision reversal for bad and doubtful debts as compared with previous year.

Impairment on goodwill

The Group performs annual impairment testing for goodwill arising from the acquisitions of the Menswear business (the details of which was set out in the 2012/2013 annual report (pages 33-34)) and the acquisition of the Ladieswear business (the details of which was set out in the 2012/2013 annual report (pages 34-35)) subsequent to the initial recognition.

The recoverable amounts of Menswear cash generating unit ("CGU") and Ladieswear CGU were estimated based on the value in use, determined by discounting the future cash flows to be generated from the continuing use of the CGUs. In preparing the value in use calculation, the management used the same valuation methodology and information as those used in previous years, taking into account any changes in the inputs used in the valuation models due to the change of the business environment at the reporting period end, to calculate the recoverable amount of the Menswear CGU and Ladieswear CGU as at March 31, 2015. As such, no independent valuer was engaged for the valuation of the recoverable amounts of the Menswear CGU as at March 31, 2015, and no valuation report was prepared by the independent valuer in this regard for the year under review.

During the year under review, the Group continued to recognise impairment losses of approximately RMB41.0 million and RMB57.0 million on goodwill arising from the Group's acquisition of the Ladieswear business and Menswear business because the carrying amount of the Ladieswear CGU and Menswear CGU was higher than their respective recoverable amount.



The discount rate used in the value in use calculation for Ladieswear CGU is 24% (2014: 24%) and Menswear CGU is 20% (2014: 20%), representing the CGU's specific weighted average cost of capital, adjusted for a risk premium to reflect the systematic risk of the CGU.

Finance income

During the year under review, the Group's finance income decreased by 9.4% to approximately RMB166.9 million from approximately RMB184.2 million in the previous year. The decrease was mainly due to the foreign exchange gains and losses generated from the current accounts among subsidiaries of the Group.

Finance expenses

The Group's finance expenses for the year under review increased by 79.7% to approximately RMB152.6 million. The expenses was mainly interests of bank loan of the Group and foreign exchange gains and losses generated from the current accounts among subsidiaries of the Group.

Taxation

For the year ended March 31, 2015, income tax expenses decreased from approximately RMB280.0 million to approximately RMB100.2 million. The effective tax rate was approximately 42.1%, higher than the standard PRC income tax rate of 25%, which was mainly attributable to the combined effect of non-deductible expenses, tax losses of certain subsidiaries of the Group not recognized as deferred tax assets and tax preferential rate enjoyed by one of the subsidiaries.

Final dividends

The Board has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HKD1.0 cent (equivalent to approximately RMB0.8 cent) per ordinary share for the year ended March 31, 2015. The proposed dividend payment is subject to approval by the shareholders of the Company at the annual general meeting to be held on or around August 28, 2015. Upon shareholders' approval, the proposed final dividends will be paid on or around September 15, 2015 to shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on September 7, 2015.

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group adopted prudent funding and treasury management policies while maintaining an overall healthy financial position. The Group's source of funding was raised by cash generated from operating activities and bank borrowings.

For the year ended March 31, 2015, the Group's net cash generated from operating activities amounted to approximately RMB387.8 million and the net cash used in operating activities amount to approximately RMB150.6 million for the year ended March 31, 2014. Cash and cash equivalents as at March 31, 2015 were in the amount of approximately RMB2,470.8 million, as compared to approximately RMB2,118.0 million as at March 31, 2014.

In order to maximize returns on the Group's available cash reserves, the Group has invested in available-for-sale financial assets, which comprised principal guaranteed short-term investments with banks in the PRC. Available-for-sale financial assets have expected but not guaranteed returns ranging from 2.27 % to 6.30% per annum.

As at March 31, 2015, the Group had bank borrowings amounting to approximately RMB3,537.6 million (2014: RMB3,259.2 million). The gearing ratio (total debt/total equity) of the Group was 47.7% (2014: 44.2%).

The Group anticipated that it will be able to arrange with its lenders to obtain fresh loans to replace the existing borrowings as they fall due within the foreseeable future, and if this were not available the Group has sufficient cash and assets held for sale to meet its borrowing repayment requirements.

Contingent liabilities

As at March 31, 2015, the Group had no material contingent liabilities.

Capital commitments

As at March 31, 2015, the Group had outstanding capital commitments in respect of plant, property and equipment amounting to approximately RMB50.3 million (2014: RMB110.0 million).

Operating lease commitment

As at March 31, 2015, the Group had irrevocable operating lease commitments which amounted to approximately RMB178.0 million (2014: approximately RMB299.4 million).

Pledge of assets

As at March 31, 2015, bank deposits amounting to approximately RMB733.5 million had been pledged to banks for the purpose of standby letter of credit, bank borrowings and bills payable and letter of credit financing (2014: approximately RMB468.9 million).

Financial management and treasury policy

The financial risk management of the Group is the responsibility of the Group's treasury department at our head office. One of the major objectives of the Group's treasury policies is to manage its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates.

Foreign currency exposure

The business operations of the Group were conducted mainly in the PRC with its revenues and expenses denominated in RMB. Some of the Group's cash and bank deposits, including proceeds from the Group's initial public offering, were denominated in Hong Kong Dollars or US Dollars. The Company and some of its overseas subsidiaries selected US Dollars as their functional currency. Any significant exchange rate fluctuations of Hong Kong Dollars or US Dollars against each entity's respective functional currency may have impacts on the Group's financial position.

As at March 31, 2015, the Directors considered the Group's foreign exchange risk to be insignificant. During the year under review, the Group did not use any financial instruments for hedging purpose.

Human resources

As at March 31, 2015, the Group had approximately 4,329 full-time employees (2014: 5,940 full-time employees). Staff costs for the year ended March 31, 2015 (including Directors' remuneration in the form of salaries and other allowances) were approximately RMB813.8 million (2014: approximately RMB925.5 million). The decrease in staff costs was mainly due to downsizing as a result of business restructuring of the Group. As the staff costs included some one-time severance costs during the year, it is believed that the cost of the Group's human resource can be further reduced in the long run. The Group's remuneration and bonus policy is primarily based on the duties, performance and length of service of each individual employee with reference to the prevailing market conditions.

To attract and retain skilled and experienced personnel and motivate them to strive for the future development and expansion of its business, the Group has also adopted a share award scheme (the "Share Award Scheme").

As at March 31, 2015, no share had been awarded by the Group under the Share Award Scheme.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As a public-spirited enterprise, the Group took part in public welfare activities through Dekang Philanthropic Foundation (the "Foundation") to care for the vulnerable groups in society and made active contribution to society in return during the year. As the leader in the domestic down apparel industry, the Group has all along made every effort to donate the down apparel. After the earthquake in Ludian, Yunnan on August 3, the Group took prompt action to donate nearly 30,000 pieces of down apparel with the value of approximately RMB11 million to the earthquake stricken area. In addition, the Foundation also donated a total of approximately 3,000 pieces of down apparel to elderly and children in the poverty-stricken areas in Mongolia and China during the year to substantiate the spirit of "Extending our love for our elderly to those of others; extending our love for our children to those of others". Moreover, the Foundation also donated medical equipment worth approximately RMB800,000 to economically backward districts during the year in order to enhance local medical and health standards.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

In view of the current situation, China's economy is undergoing structural changes, it is expected that the economic growth in China will continue to slow down in a short term perspective, and the consumer confidence will remain low, making it hard to keep an optimistic view on the retail consumer market. In addition, unfavorable factors in the apparel industry prevail, such as high inventories and over-expansion in prior periods, means that the market environment remains challenging. In the coming year, the Group will continue to adopt a pragmatic attitude and strive to enhance its competitiveness and improve its operating efficiency, so as to lay a more solid foundation for future healthy development of the Group and further consolidate its leading position in China's apparel industry.

Down apparel business: The Group will continue to implement inventory reduction measures proactively to improve its business. The Group will further refine its retail channel, clearing old stocks mostly through "discounted stores" to ensure a balanced sales between new and old products. In terms of product development, the Group will largely reduce the development of traditional and basic styles to avoid overlapping with old stocks. Furthermore, the Group will implement a unified retail pricing across the nation, to avoid unnecessary competition among distributors and to ensure a healthier development among our down apparel brands. At the same time, the Group will accelerate the construction of information systems to improve its operational efficiency through the enhancement of information management, so as to achieve its goal of retail transformation. In respect of channel development, in consideration of the changes in consumption pattern, the Group will also actively research on opening more stores in large shopping malls.

International business: The Group will further expand the operation of its flagship store in the United Kingdom and add full range down apparel products, to explore the feasibility of expanding the Group's self-operated branded down apparel business overseas.

Group Structure: The Group will actively promote further optimization and adjustment of its organization structure to improve operating efficiency and save costs.

Diversified development: The Group will proactively pursue opportunities for new business and external alliances including the introduction of strategic investors who can drive and enhance the Group's business so as to further strengthen the Group's capability in operation, management and acquisition and merger, so as to lay a solid foundation for the Group to become an integrated multi-brand apparel operator.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company is dedicated to maintaining and ensuring high standards of corporate governance practices. The corporate governance principles of the Company emphasize accountability and transparency and are adopted in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders. The board (the "Board") of directors (the "Directors") of the Company reviews its corporate governance practices from time to time in order to meet the rising expectations of shareholders and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

The Group has complied with the applicable code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the "Code") as contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the "Listing Rules") on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange") for the year ended March 31, 2015 except for Code provision A.2.1, the details of which are disclosed below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is charged with providing effective and responsible leadership for the Company. The Board takes responsibility to oversee all major matters of the Company, including the formulation and approval of the Group's overall objectives and strategies, internal control and risk management systems, monitoring its operating and financial performance, and evaluating the performance of the senior management. The Directors, individually and collectively, have to make decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.

As at July 20, 2015 (being the latest practicable date prior to the printing of this report), the Board consisted of ten Directors, of whom six are executive Directors and four are independent non-executive Directors. The executive Directors are responsible for implementing business strategies and managing the business of the Group in accordance with all applicable rules and regulations, including but not limited to, the Listing Rules. All Directors (including the independent non-executive Directors') have been consulted on all major and material matters of the Group. The Company maintains appropriate directors' and officers' liabilities insurance.

The role of the Board includes convening shareholders' meetings and reporting their work to shareholders in shareholders' meetings, implementing the resolutions of the shareholders' meetings, determining the Group's business plans and investment plans, preparing the Group's annual budget and final accounts, putting forward proposals for dividend and bonus distributions and for the increase or reduction of registered or issued share capital, formulating proposals for share repurchase in accordance with any repurchase mandate granted by the shareholders' meeting as well as exercising other powers, functions and duties as conferred by the articles of association of the Company. The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance duties set out in Code provision D.3.1. In discharging its responsibilities, the Board meets regularly and acts in good faith, with due diligence and care.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

During the financial year ended March 31, 2015, the Board convened a total of seven Board meetings based on the needs of the operation and business development of the Group. The composition of the Board and their respective attendance at the Board meetings and Board committee meetings convened during the financial year ended March 31, 2015, as well as at the annual general meeting held on August 28, 2014, are as follows:

	No. of meetings attended/held					
					Annual General	
		Audit	Remuneration	Nomination	Meeting on	
	Board	Committee	Committee	Committee	August 28,	
	Meetings	Meetings	Meeting	Meetings	2014	
Executive Directors						
Mr. Gao Dekang (Chairman of the Board)	7/7	N/A	1/1	1/1	1/1	
Ms. Mei Dong	7/7	N/A	N/A	N/A	0/1	
Dr. Kong Shengyuan						
(Resigned with effect from May 15, 2014)	1/7*	N/A	N/A	N/A	0/1	
Ms. Gao Miaoqin	7/7	N/A	N/A	N/A	0/1	
Ms. Huang Qiaolian	7/7	N/A	N/A	N/A	1/1	
Mr. Mak Yun Kuen	7/7	N/A	N/A	N/A	1/1	
Mr. Rui Jinsong	7/7	N/A	N/A	N/A	0/1	
Independent non-executive Directors						
Mr. Dong Binggen	7/7	2/2	1/1	1/1	0/1	
Mr. Wang Yao	7/7	2/2	1/1	1/1	1/1	
Dr. Ngai Wai Fung	7/7	2/2	N/A	N/A	0/1	
Mr. Lian Jie	7/7	2/2	N/A	N/A	0/1	

* Meeting has been fully attended since his appointment.

Throughout the financial year ended March 31, 2015, the Board had met the requirements of Rules 3.10 and 3.10A of the Listing Rules of having at least four independent non-executive Directors (representing at least one-third of the Board) with one of them (namely, Dr. Ngai Wai Fung) possessing the appropriate accounting professional qualifications.

The independent non-executive Directors bring a variety of experience and expertise to the Company. Each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his independence in writing pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Directors are of the view that all independent non-executive Directors meet the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The appointment of each of the Directors may be terminated by either the Company or the Director by giving a 3-month written notice and the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company in accordance with the articles of association of the Company.

Minutes of the Board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are available for inspection by the Directors and auditor of the Company.

DIRECTORS' TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors receive comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on appointment, so as to ensure their understanding of the business and operations of the Group and Directors' responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and the relevant regulatory requirements.

All Directors are continually updated on developments in the relevant statutory and regulatory regimes, and the newest business and market changes to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and the relevant statutory requirements. Briefings and professional development for Directors will be arranged when necessary.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Pursuant to the requirements of the Code, all Directors should provide their training records to the Company. According to the training records provided by the Directors, the trainings attended by them during the reporting period is summarized as follows:

	Corporate Governance,
	Regulatory Development
	and Trainings on other
Directors	relevant topics
Executive Directors	
Mr. Gao Dekang	\checkmark
Ms. Mei Dong	
Ms. Gao Miaoqin	
Ms. Huang Qiaolian	\checkmark
Mr. Mak Yun Kuen	\checkmark
Mr. Rui Jinsong	\checkmark
Independent non-executive Directors	
Mr. Dong Binggen	\checkmark
Mr. Wang Yao	\checkmark
Dr. Ngai Wai Fung	\checkmark
Mr. Lian Jie	\checkmark

THE ROLES OF THE CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 provides that the roles of the chairman and chief executive officer ("CEO") should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.

Dr. Liang Sheuh-Hvei had been the CEO of the Company during the period from May 15, 2014 to January 31, 2015. He had ceased to act as the CEO of the Company and he confirmed that he has no disagreement with the Board and there is nothing relating to his resignation that needs to be brought to the attention of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and shareholders of the Company. In respect of Dr. Liang Sheuh-Hvei's resignation, Mr. Gao Dekang, the Chairman of the Board and executive director of the Company, had assumed the role of the CEO of the Company with effect from January 31, 2015.

Mr. Gao Dekang is the founder of the Group, the Chairman of the Board and the CEO of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2015. The Board believes that it is necessary to vest the roles of the Chairman of the Board and CEO in the same person due to his unique role, Mr. Gao Dekang's experience and well-established reputation in China's down apparel industry, and the importance of Mr. Gao Dekang in the strategic development of the Company. This dual role provides strong and consistent market leadership and is critical for efficient business planning and decision-making of the Company. As all major decisions are made in consultation with members of the Board and relevant Board committees, and there are independent non-executive Directors on the Board offering independent perspectives, the Board is therefore of the view that there are adequate safeguards in place to ensure sufficient balance of powers within the Board.

The Board will continue to review and monitor the practices of the Company for the purpose of complying with the Code and maintaining a high standard of corporate governance practices of the Company.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the "Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding Directors' securities transactions. Directors are reminded of their obligations under the Model Code on a regular basis. Following specific enquiry by the Company, all Directors have confirmed that they had complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended March 31, 2015 and up to the date of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established by the Company on September 15, 2007, whose primary duties are to review and supervise the financial reporting process and internal control procedures of the Group, nominate and monitor the external auditor, and perform other duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board. Please refer to the terms of reference published on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange for the principal roles and functions of the Audit Committee. The audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2015 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and audited by KPMG, the Company's external auditor. As at July 20, 2015 (being the latest practicable date prior to the printing of this report), the Audit Committee comprised four independent non-executive Directors, namely, Dr. Ngai Wai Fung (Chairman), Mr. Dong Binggen, Mr. Wang Yao and Mr. Lian Jie.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Major work performed by the Audit Committee during the year is summarized as follows:

- review of and recommendation for the Board's approval of the 2013/2014 annual report, interim financial information and annual financial statements with a focus on compliance with accounting standards, the Listing Rules and other requirements in relation to financial reporting;
- review of the accounting policies adopted by the Group and matters related to common accounting practices;
- review of the nature and scope of audit;
- discussion with the external auditor and the management on possible accounting risks;
- assisting the Board with the evaluation of the efficiency of the financial reporting procedures and internal control system;
- approval of the audit fees and terms of engagement of the external auditor; and
- review of the external auditor's qualifications, independence and performance, and making recommendation for the Board's re-appointment of the external auditor.

During the meetings held in the year ended March 31, 2015, the Audit Committee has considered the interim and annual results of the Group as well as the report prepared by the external auditor relating to accounting matters and other major findings identified during the course of interim review and annual audit.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (the "Remuneration Committee") was established by the Company on September 15, 2007, whose primary duties are to determine the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and the senior management based on the Company's operating results, individual performance and comparable market statistics. Please refer to the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company for the principal roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee.

As at July 20, 2015 (being the latest practicable date prior to the printing of this report), the Remuneration Committee consisted of three members, comprising one executive Director and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Wang Yao (Chairman), Mr. Gao Dekang and Mr. Dong Binggen.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting and reviewed the Group's policy on remuneration of all the Directors and senior management. During the year, the Remuneration Committee had determined the remuneration packages of all executive Directors and senior management and made recommendation to the Board of the remuneration of the non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive Directors.
NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company (the "Nomination Committee") was established by the Company on September 15, 2007, whose primary functions are to review the structure, size and composition of the Board, identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members with reference to the candidates' experience and qualifications and the Company's corporate strategy and diversity policy, assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors and make recommendations to the Board regarding candidates to fill vacancies on the Board. Please refer to the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee published on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange for the principal roles and functions of the Nomination Committee.

As at July 20, 2015 (being the latest practicable date prior to the printing of this report), the Nomination Committee consisted of three members, comprising one executive Director and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Gao Dekang (Chairman), Mr. Dong Binggen and Mr. Wang Yao.

During the year under review, one meeting was held by the Nomination Committee to review the structure, size and composition of the Board and to assess the independence of the independent non-executive Directors. During the year, the Board adopted a board diversity policy setting out the approach to diversity of members of the Board. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board members. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives that are appropriate to the requirements of the Company's business. All Board appointments are made on a merit basis with due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board members. Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, experience (professional or otherwise), skills and knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The executive committee of the Company (the "Executive Committee") was established by the Company on June 26, 2014, whose primary functions are to be responsible for the management of major strategies and decisions of the Company and the supervision of major operating activities of the Company. The Executive Committee takes responsibility for the Board and performs the management, coordination and supervision functions during the recess of the Board. The terms of reference of the Executive Committee include: supervising the implementation of the major strategies and tactics of the Company; supervising the implementation of the Board resolutions; reviewing the major investment and financing plans, merger and acquisition plans, business plans, annual operational plans and other management plans submitted by the CEO; and making suggestions to the Board.

As at July 20, 2015 (being the latest practicable date prior to the printing of this report), the Executive Committee consisted of two members, comprising the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, namely Mr. Gao Dekang (Chairman) and Mr. Mak Yun Kuen.

Dr. Liang Sheuh-Hvei resigned as a member of the Executive Committee with effect from January 31, 2015.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the Company, and each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into an appointment letter with the Company, for a fixed term of three years, renewable automatically for successive terms of one year, until terminated by either party by giving a 3-month written notice. Each Director is subject to reelection by the Company at the annual general meeting upon retirement. The articles of association of the Company provide that any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting after his appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office until the next following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has an overall responsibility for maintaining a sound and effective internal control system of the Group. The Company has conducted reviews of its system of internal control periodically to ensure the effectiveness and adequacy of the internal control system. The Company convened meetings with the Audit Committee periodically to discuss financial, operational and risk management control. The Directors are of the view that the existing system of internal control is effective and adequate to the Group.

MANAGEMENT FUNCTION

The articles of association of the Company set out matters which are specifically reserved to the Board for its decision. In order to enhance efficiency, the Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibilities and operations to the senior management under the supervision of the Board. The management team meets regularly to review and discuss with executive Directors on daily operational issues, financial and operating performance as well as to monitor and ensure the management is carrying out the directions and strategies set by the Board properly.

DIRECTORS' AND AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility to oversee the preparation of the financial statements for each financial period to ensure that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs, results and cash flow of the Group.

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2015, the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, adopted appropriate International Financial Reporting Standards, made prudent and reasonable judgments and estimates, and prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis. The Directors also warrant that the Group's financial statements will be published in a timely manner.

The statement of the auditor of the Group about their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the section headed "Independent Auditor's Report" on page 57 and page 58 of this report.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

During the year under review, the fees charged by the Company's external auditor, KPMG, for statutory audit and non-audit services are set out below:

	RMB′000
Statutory audit services (including interim financial report review)	6,600
Non-audit services (including advisory for tax and compliance, internal audit and IT service)	1,108
	7,708

The Audit Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the Board as to the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external auditor, which are subject to the approval by the Board and at the annual general meetings of the Company by its shareholders.

Certain factors that the Audit Committee will take into account when assessing the external auditor include the audit performance, quality and objectivity and independence of the auditor.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

In the light of the good faith principle, the Company strictly complies with and implements the provisions of the Listing Rules to disclose information on a true, accurate, complete and timely basis and all other information that might have a significant impact on the decisions of shareholders and other relevant parties in an active and timely manner. Also, the Company makes an effort in ensuring that all shareholders have equal access to such information. As such, the Company has duly performed its statutory obligation in respect of information disclosure.

The management believes that effective communication with the investment community is essential. Since the listing of the Company in October 2007, the executive Directors and the CEO held regular briefings and results presentations, attended investors' forums and responded to investors' call-in enquiries, arranged store visits and participated in roadshows to communicate with institutional investors and financial analysts in the PRC, Hong Kong and overseas countries to keep them abreast of the newest Company's business and development as well as operating strategies and prospects. In delivering information to investors, the Company also listens to their advice and collects feedback from them, in the interests of developing an interactive and mutually beneficial relationship with the Company's investors.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Shareholders may send written enquiries, either by post, by facsimile or by email, addressing to the Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong at the following address or facsimile number or email address:

Address:	Unit 5709, 57/F., The Center,
	99 Queen's Road Central,
	Central, Hong Kong
Email:	bosideng_ir@bosideng.com
Tel:	(852) 2866 6918
Fax:	(852) 2866 6930

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Shareholders of the Company may request to convene extraordinary general meetings. Pursuant to Article 58 of the articles of association of the Company, any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board to hold the meeting shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Shareholders may put forward proposals at general meetings of the Company by sending the same to the Company, either by post, by facsimile or by email (the contact details are set out in the section headed "Communications with Shareholders and Investor Relations" above), specifying his/her information, contact details and the proposal(s) he/she intends to put forward at the general meeting regarding any specified transaction/business and the supporting documents.

MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION OF THE COMPANY

During the reporting period, no amendment was made by the Company to the memorandum and articles of association of the Company.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Gao Dekang, aged 63, is the Chairman of the Board of Directors and the CEO of the Company. He is a representative of the 10th to 12th National Congress and a National Model Worker (全國勞動模範). He is the founder of the Group and is responsible for the overall strategic development and management of the Group. He has over 30 years of experience in the apparel industry. He is a senior economist and a senior engineer. He received an EMBA degree (majoring in Business Administration) from Phoenix International University in New Zealand in 2002, and obtained a Master's degree in business management from Victoria University in Switzerland in 2012.

Mr. Gao is holding the following public offices:

Year	Public Offices
2004	Vice President of China National Garment Association
2010	President of Textile & Garment Chamber of Commerce, All-China Federation of Industry & Commerce
2012	Member of the Executive Committee of China Federation of Industry and Commerce
2012	Invited Vice President of China National Light Industry Council
2012	Chairman of the Board of China Federation of Industrial Economics
2012	Invited Vice Chairman of China National Textile and Apparel Council
2015	Director of the Down Apparel and Related Products Committee of China National Garment Association

Mr. Gao has been widely recognized throughout the years:

Year	Award
2009	Outstanding Administrator of the 30th Anniversary (30週年傑出管理者)
2009	National Economic Figure on the 60th Anniversary of the PRC (新中國成立60週年全國經濟新聞人物)
2009	China CEO (中國CEO年度人物)
2009	Meritorious Entrepreneur of China Feather and Down Industry (中國羽絨行業功勳企業家)
2009	60 Outstanding Brand Builders in Memory of the 60th Anniversary of the PRC (建國60年60位功勳品牌人物)
2009	Excellent Contributor of Chinese Socialism (優秀中國特色社會主義事業建設者)
2011	Leader of Textile and Apparel Industry in China (中國紡織服裝領軍人物)
2011	Person of the Year award of the Leaders (《領袖人物》年度人物大獎)
2012	China Charity Award (中華慈善獎)
2013	China's Outstanding Quality People (中國傑出質量人)

Mr. Gao is the spouse of Ms. Mei Dong (a Controlling Shareholder and Director), father of Mr. Gao Xiaodong (a Controlling Shareholder) and cousin of Ms. Gao Miaoqin (a Director).

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Mei Dong, aged 47, is an executive Director and the Executive Vice President of the Company. Ms. Mei was appointed as an executive Director in July 2006 and is responsible for the operational management of the Group. She has nearly 20 years' experience in the down apparel industry. Ms. Mei obtained various awards and honours such as the recognition of "Successful Female Entrepreneur" (巾幗建功) in China and the National Model Worker (全國勞動模範). Ms. Mei joined Bosideng Corporation in June 1994, and remained with the Group after the reorganisation of the businesses of the Group prior to its listing. She received an EMBA degree (majoring in Business Administration) from Phoenix International University in New Zealand in 2002. She is the spouse of Mr. Gao Dekang (a Controlling Shareholder and Director).

Ms. Gao Miaoqin, aged 64, is an executive Director and the Consultant of the Chairman of Board of the Company. Ms. Gao was appointed as an executive Director in July 2006 and is responsible for the special investment and public relations matters of the Group. She has over 20 years' experience in the down apparel industry. Ms. Gao joined Bosideng Corporation in June 1994, and remained with the Group after the reorganisation of the businesses of the Group prior to its listing. She graduated from Suzhou College of Education in China in 1985 and received a certificate of advanced English education for middle school English teachers. She is the cousin of Mr. Gao Dekang (a Controlling Shareholder and Director).

Ms. Huang Qiaolian, aged 50, is an executive Director and the Vice President of the Company and the General Manager of Shanghai Bosideng Fashion Design and Development Centre Co., Ltd. (a subsidiary of the Company). Ms. Huang was appointed as an executive Director in June 2007 and is responsible for conducting the monographic study on the fashion trend of down apparel, unveiling the fashion trend and designing high-end down apparel products. Her works have been displayed in numerous exhibitions in countries such as Korea, Canada and Russia. She received various honours such as contemporary renowned designer, one of the top ten fashion designers in China and the contributing designer in publishing the research on the garment trend in China. She has over 20 years' experience in the fashion industry. She serves various positions in different associations and organisations, such as the Council Member of the Fashion Art Committee of China Fashion Association (中國服裝設計師協會時裝藝術委員會) and the special researcher for the fashion trend of China Fashion. Ms. Huang joined Bosideng Corporation in March 1997 and remained with the Group after the reorganisation of the businesses of the Group prior to its listing. She graduated from the School of Fashion Design in Jiangsu (江蘇服裝設計學校) in 1987 and further studied in Donghua University majoring in High Fashion in 1994 and the Public School of High Fashion in Paris, France (法國巴黎高級時裝公學院) in 1999. She studied in East China Normal University in Shanghai majoring in Business Administration in 2004.

Mr. Mak Yun Kuen, aged 39, is an executive Director, Company Secretary and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company. He is responsible for the overall financial and accounting affairs, investor relations and company secretarial affairs of the Company. In addition, Mr. Mak is the director and/or company secretary of certain subsidiaries in the Group. He joined the Company in July 2008 and was appointed as an executive Director with effect from May 2013. Mr. Mak graduated from Lingnan University with a Bachelor's Degree in Business Administration (Honours), and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Before joining the Group, he was the qualified accountant and company secretary of Golden Eagle Retail Group Limited (03308), a company listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Rui Jinsong, aged 43, is an executive Director and Vice president of the Company and the General Manager of the Group's retail business. Mr. Rui is fully responsible for the overall management of the retail business of the Group's core apparel brands. Mr. Rui graduated from Wuxi Light Industry College majoring in Textile Engineering in 1994. He joined Bosideng Corporation in May 2004 and remained with the Group after the reorganisation of the businesses of the Group prior to its listing, from which he acquired practical experience in brand and retail management.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Dong Binggen, aged 65, a senior engineer, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in September 2007. He graduated from Eastern China Textile Institute (currently known as Donghua University) in 1977. Since February 1997, he has worked with Hualian Development Group Co., Ltd. as the Chairman and President, Secretary of the Communist Party Committee. Currently, he is also the Chairman of China Union Holdings Ltd. (000036), a PRC company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange. He had been the Chairman of the Shenzhen Textile Industry Association, the President of the Shenzhen Textile Engineering Association, the member of the Standing Committee and the Invited Vice Chairman of China Textile Industry Association. He is currently also the Vice Chairman of China Textile Industry Enterprise Management Association.

Mr. Wang Yao, aged 56, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in September 2007. He currently serves as the Vice President of the China General Chamber of Commerce and director of the China National Commercial Information Center. He received a Ph.D. degree in Engineering from Harbin Institute of Technology in 1989. He also obtained the qualification as a professor-grade engineer. Currently, he is an independent director of Hosa International Limited (02200), a company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Wang was the independent director of Golden Eagle Retail Group Ltd. (03308).

Dr. Ngai Wai Fung, aged 53, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the Company in September 2007. He is currently the director and chief executive officer of SW Corporate Services Group Limited, a specialty company secretarial, corporate governance and compliance services provider to companies in pre-IPO and post-IPO stages. Prior to that, he was the director and head of listing services of an independent integrated corporate services provider. Dr. Ngai has over 20 years of senior management experience including acting as the executive director, chief financial officer and company secretary, most of which are in the areas of finance, accounting, internal control, regulatory compliance, corporate governance and secretarial work for listed issuers including major red chips companies. He had led or participated in a number of significant corporate finance projects including listings, mergers and acquisitions as well as issuance of debt securities. Dr. Ngai is a president of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries, a member of Qualification and Examination Board of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Adjunct Professor of Law at Hong Kong Shue Yan University and a member of the General Committee of the Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies. Dr. Ngai was appointed by the Chief Executive of The Hong Kong Special Administrative Region as a member of Working Group on Professional Services under the Economic Development Commission for two years in 2013 and reappointed for further two years in 2015. He is a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom, a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries, a fellow of Hong Kong Institute of Directors and a member of Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute. Dr. Ngai obtained a Doctoral Degree in Finance at Shanghai University of Finance and Economics in 2011 and received a Master's Degree in Corporate Finance from Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2002 and a Master's Degree in Business Administration from Andrews University of Michigan in 1992 and a Bachelor's Degree in Law at University of Wolverhampton in 1994.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Dr. Ngai is currently an independent non-executive director of two dual-listing companies whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange (SEHK) and Shanghai Stock Exchange ("SSE"), namely China Railway Group Limited (SEHK, Stock Code: 00390, SSE, Stock Code: 601390) and China Coal Energy Company Limited (SEHK, Stock Code: 01898; SSE, Stock Code: 601898). In addition, Dr. Ngai is the independent non-executive director of the following companies, namely BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited (SEHK, Stock Code: 01338), Biostime International Holdings Limited (SEHK, Stock Code: 01112), Beijing Capital Juda Limited (formerly known as Juda International Holdings Limited) (SEHK, Stock Code: 01329), Powerlong Real Estate Holdings Limited (SEHK, Stock Code: 01238), SITC International Holdings Company Limited (SEHK, Stock Code: 01308), Sany Heavy Equipment International Holdings Company Limited (SEHK, Stock Code: 01308), Sany Heavy Equipment International Holdings Company Limited (SEHK, Stock Code: 01308), Sany Heavy Equipment International Holdings Company Limited (SEHK, Stock Code: 01308), Sany Heavy Equipment International Holdings Company Limited (SEHK, Stock Code: 01308), Sany Heavy Equipment International Holdings Company Limited (SEHK, Stock Code: 01308), Sany Heavy Equipment International Holdings Company Limited (SEHK, Stock Code: 01308), Sany Heavy Equipment International Holdings Company Limited (SEHK, Stock Code: 01308), Sany Heavy Equipment International Holdings Company Limited (SEHK, Stock Code: 01308), Sany Heavy Equipment International Holdings Company Limited (SEHK, Stock Code: 01308), Sany Heavy Equipment International Holdings Company Limited (SEHK, Stock Code: 00631) and Yangtze Optical Fibre and Cable Joint Stock Limited Company (SEHK, Stock Code: 06869). Dr. Ngai is also an independent director of LDK Solar Co., Ltd. (whose American depositary shares were listed on the New York Stock Exchange, now are currently listed on OTC Pink Limited Information, stock code: LDKYQ). He was the independent

Mr. Lian Jie, aged 41, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director with effect from July 2013. Mr. Lian is currently the Partner of Primavera Capital Group which is a China focused private equity firm. Mr. Lian is also an independent non-executive director of Bona Film Group Limited which is a company listed on the NASDAQ Stock Market (Nasdaq Stock Code: BONA) and a non-executive director of China XLX Fertiliser Limited which is a company listed on the Singapore Exchange ("SGX") and the Stock Exchange (SGX, Stock Code: 1866).

From 2009 to 2010, Mr. Lian served as the Managing Director in China International Capital Corporation ("CICC") Investment Banking Division based in Hong Kong. Prior to joining CICC, Mr. Lian had been the Managing Director of the Investment Banking Division of Goldman Sachs in Hong Kong for more than seven years. Mr. Lian graduated with an MBA from the Tuck School of Management, Dartmouth College.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liu Wei, aged 47, is the Vice President and the general manager of multi business department of the Company, responsible for the audit, legal and business administration matters of the Group and assists to track and adjust the financial center, human resource center and information center matters of the Group. Mr. Liu joined Bosideng Corporation in 2004, and remained with the Group after the reorganisation of the businesses of the Group prior to its listing. He obtained a Master's Degree in Business Administration (MBA) from the Central South University and a Master's Degree in Public Administration (MPA) from Peking University. Mr. Liu is qualified as an internationally certified internal auditor, China Certified Public Accountant, senior auditor and China corporate legal advisor.

REPORT OF DIRECTORS

The Board presents this annual report, together with the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2015 set out in the Auditor's Report contained in this annual report (the "Financial Statements").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on July 10, 2006 as an exempted company with limited liability. The Group's operations are substantially conducted through its direct or indirect subsidiaries in the PRC. The Group primarily focuses on developing and managing the portfolio of its down apparel brands, which includes research, design and development, raw materials procurement, outsourced manufacturing, and marketing and distribution of branded down apparel products, original equipment manufacturing ("OEM") products and non-down apparel products.

The Group's revenue and net profits attributable to the shareholders during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 59 and Note 5 to the Financial Statements.

RESULTS AND DISTRIBUTION

The results of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2015 are set out in the Financial Statements included in the Auditor's Report. The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend of HKD1.0 cent (equivalent to approximately RMB0.8 cent) per ordinary share in respect of the year ended March 31, 2015, totalling approximately HKD80,073,500.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and assets, liabilities and equity for the five financial years ended March 31, 2015, as extracted from the audited financial statements of the Group disclosed in the 2010/2011, 2011/12, 2012/13 and 2013/14 annual reports, and from the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2015, is set out below.

	Year ended				
	March 31,				
	2011	2012	2013	2014	2015
	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000
Results					
Profit attributable to:					
– Equity shareholders of the Company	1,276,446	1,436,642	1,078,650	694,704	132,197
 Non-controlling interests 	(4,450)	14,103	(26,036)	7,634	5,726
Assets, liabilities and equity					
Total assets	9,111,681	11,237,741	12,213,207	12,758,192	12,488,706
Total liabilities	2,144,950	3,886,039	4,927,539	5,380,959	5,074,807
Total equity	6,966,731	7,351,702	7,285,668	7,377,233	7,413,899

REPORT OF DIRECTORS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Details of acquisition and other movements of the non-current assets during the year are set out in Notes 16 to 20 and Note 32 to the Financial Statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in the Group's share capital during the year ended March 31, 2015 are set out in Note 33 to the Financial Statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended March 31, 2015 are set out in Note 33 to the Financial Statements.

BANK BORROWINGS

Details of bank borrowings of the Group as at March 31, 2015 are set out in Note 28 to the Financial Statements.

DONATIONS

The Group's charitable and other donations during the year ended March 31, 2015 amounted to RMB14,114,000 (2014: RMB8,801,000).

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended March 31, 2015 and up to July 20, 2015 (being the latest practicable date prior to the printing of this report) are as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Gao Dekang (Chairman of the Board) Ms. Mei Dong Ms. Gao Miaoqin Ms. Huang Qiaolian Mr. Mak Yun Kuen Mr. Rui Jinsong

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Dong Binggen Mr. Wang Yao Dr. Ngai Wai Fung Mr. Lian Jie

All of the Directors were appointed for a fixed term of three years under their respective service contracts or appointment letters entered into with the Company, renewable automatically for successive terms of one year, until terminated by either party by giving a 3-month notice. In accordance with Article 87 of the articles of association of the Company, at each annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office by rotation and these retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election at that annual general meeting. Accordingly, Ms. Mei Dong, Ms. Gao Miaoqin, Mr. Rui Jinsong, Mr. Lian Jie shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting (the "AGM"). Ms. Mei Dong, Ms. Gao Miaoqin, Mr. Rui Jinsong, Mr. Lian Jie, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not terminable within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of its independent non-executive Directors the confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board considers the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS' AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management are set out in the section headed "Directors and Senior Management" in this report.

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR DEBENTURES

As at March 31, 2015, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the "SFO"), which were required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which each of them had taken or deemed to have taken under the provisions of the SFO); or (b) to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (c) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

(a) Long positions in the Company

Name of Director	Nature of interest	Number of shares held	Approximate percentage of interest in the Company
Mr. Gao Dekang	Other (Note 1)	5,208,791,201	65.05%
	Deemed interest (Note 3)	2,763,697	0.035%
Ms. Mei Dong	Other (Notes 1 and 4)	5,208,791,201	65.05%
	Beneficial owner (Note 2)	2,763,697	0.035%
Ms. Gao Miaoqin	Beneficial owner (Note 2)	1,003,697	0.013%
Ms. Huang Qiaolian	Beneficial owner (Note 2)	2,763,697	0.035%
Mr. Rui Jinsong	Beneficial owner (Note 2)	1,878,242	0.023%

REPORT OF DIRECTORS

Notes:

- (1) These shares were directly held by Kong Bo Investment Limited (as to 5,156,219,202 shares) and Kong Bo Development Limited (as to 52,571,999 shares). Each of Kong Bo Investment Limited and Kong Bo Development Limited is wholly owned by Kova Group Limited, which is in turn wholly owned by The GDK Family Trust, the trustee of which is Cititrust (Singapore) Limited. The GDK Family Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Gao Dekang as founder, for the benefit of his family members (including Ms. Mei Dong). Accordingly, each of Mr. Gao Dekang and Ms. Mei Dong is deemed to be interested in such shares under the SFO.
- (2) Each of Ms. Mei Dong, Ms. Gao Miaoqin and Ms. Huang Qiaolian was granted 2,763,697 shares, and Mr. Rui Jinsong was granted 1,878,242 shares, under the Share Scheme over a vesting period. Ms. Gao Miaoqin had disposed of 1,760,000 shares during the reporting period.
- (3) Mr. Gao Dekang is the spouse of Ms. Mei Dong. Thus, he is deemed to be interested in the 2,763,697 shares held by Ms. Mei Dong under the SFO.
- (4) Ms. Mei Dong is the spouse of Mr. Gao Dekang. Thus, she is deemed to be interested in the 5,208,791,201 shares held by Mr. Gao Dekang under the SFO.

(b) Long positions in the associated corporations of the Company

Name of Director	Nature of interest	Name of associated corporation	Number of shares of the associated corporation held	Approximate percentage of interest in the associated corporation
Mr. Gao Dekang	Other	Kong Bo Investment Limited Kong Bo Development Limited Kova Group Limited	100 1 1	100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Ms. Mei Dong	Other	Kong Bo Investment Limited Kong Bo Development Limited Kova Group Limited	100 1 1	100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Note: Kong Bo Investment Limited and Kong Bo Development Limited own 64.39% and 0.66% of the shares of the Company (comprising 5,156,219,202 shares and 52,571,999 shares, respectively), each of which is wholly owned by Kova Group Limited, which is in turn wholly owned by The GDK Family Trust, the trustee of which is Cititrust (Singapore) Limited. The GDK Family Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Gao Dekang as founder, for the benefit of his family members (including Ms. Mei Dong). Accordingly, each of Mr. Gao Dekang and Ms. Mei Dong is deemed to be interested in the shares of Kong Bo Investment Limited, Kong Bo Development Limited and Kova Group Limited under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at March 31, 2015, none of the Directors or chief executive of the Company had interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which each of them had taken or deemed to have taken under the provisions of the SFO); or (b) to be recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (c) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart from the Group's business, that competes or is likely to compete (either directly or indirectly) with the Group's business at any time during the year ended March 31, 2015 and up to the date of this report.

As disclosed in the Prospectus, Mr. Gao Dekang has entered into a Non-competition Deed (as defined in the Prospectus) dated September 15, 2007 in favour of the Company. Mr. Gao Dekang has provided the Group with a written confirmation that he and his associates (other than members of the Group) have fully complied with the Non-competition Deed as at the date of this report.

The independent non-executive Directors have, based on the information available to them, including information and confirmation provided by or obtained from Mr. Gao Dekang and his associates (other than members of the Group), for the financial year ended March 31, 2015, conducted a review of the compliance with the Non- competition Deed and are of the view that: (i) Mr. Gao Dekang and his associates (other than members of the Group) have complied with the non-competition undertakings pursuant to the Non-competition Deed; and (ii) there have been no decisions taken in relation to whether to exercise the option pursuant to the Non-competition Deed and whether to pursue any business opportunities which may be referred or offered to the Group by Mr. Gao Dekang or his associates (other than members of the Group) pursuant to the Non-competition Deed.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Mr. Gao Dekang and his associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) have entered into certain transactions as further described below under the heading "Connected Transactions" and Note 36 to the Financial Statements under the section "Related Party Transactions". Ms. Mei Dong is the spouse of Mr. Gao Dekang and Ms. Gao Miaoqin is the cousin of Mr. Gao Dekang. Save as disclosed, no Director had a material interest in any contract of significance to the Group's business for the year ended March 31, 2015 in which the Group was a party.

REPORT OF DIRECTORS

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the Group to reward its employees is based on their performance, qualifications and competence displayed.

The remuneration of the Directors of the Company is decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company's operating results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and of the five highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in Notes 12 and 13 to the Financial Statements.

PROVIDENT AND RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group's employees in the PRC participate in various defined contribution schemes provided by the relevant provincial and municipal governments under which the Group is required to make monthly contributions to these schemes. The Group's subsidiaries in the PRC contribute funds to the retirement schemes, which are calculated on a stipulated percentage of the average employee salary provided by the relevant provincial and municipal government. The Group has no further obligations for the actual payment of post-retirement benefits beyond the contributions.

The Group's contributions to the retirement benefit schemes charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2015 were RMB64,723,000.

Details of the Group's contributions to the retirement benefit schemes are shown in Note 8 to the Financial Statements.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at March 31, 2015, according to the register of interests kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, and so far as was known to the Directors or chief executive of the Company, the following persons, other than Directors or chief executive of the Company, had an interest or short position in the shares which would require disclosure by the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who was directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at a general meeting of the Company:

Name of shareholder	Nature of interest	Number of Shares in long position	Approximate percentage of interest in the Company
Cititrust (Singapore) Limited	Trustee (Note)	5,208,791,201	65.05%
Kova Group Limited	Interest of controlled corporation (Note)	5,208,791,201	65.05%
Kong Bo Investment Limited	Corporate interest (Note)	5,156,219,202	64.39%
Brandes Investment Partners, L.P.	Investment Manager	560,555,550	7.00%

Note: These Shares were directly held by Kong Bo Investment Limited (as to 5,156,219,202 shares) and Kong Bo Development Limited (as to 52,571,999 shares). Each of Kong Bo Investment Limited and Kong Bo Development Limited is wholly owned by Kova Group Limited, which is in turn wholly owned by The GDK Family Trust, the trustee of which is Cititrust (Singapore) Limited. The GDK Family Trust is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Gao Dekang as founder, for the benefit of his family members (including Ms. Mei Dong). Accordingly, each of Kova Group Limited and Cititrust (Singapore) Limited is deemed to be interested in such shares under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at March 31, 2015, the Directors and the chief executive of the Company were not aware of any other person who had an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares which would require disclosure under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or who was directly or indirectly interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at a general meeting of the Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed below under the section headed "Connected Transactions", no contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of the Company's business were entered into or existed during the year ended March 31, 2015.

REPORT OF DIRECTORS

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

On April 24, 2015, the Company has entered into the subscription agreement (the "Subscription Agreement") with New Surplus International Investment Limited (the "Subscriber", a company indirectly wholly owned by Mr. Gao Dekang and to be invested by IC International Company Limited (a company jointly set up by subsidiaries of ITOCHU Corporation and Goldstone (a wholly-owned investment platform of CITIC Securities Company Limited)) pursuant to which the Subscriber has conditionally agreed to subscribe and the Company has conditionally agreed to allot and issue an aggregate of 1,302,500,000 new shares (the "Subscription Shares") at the subscription price of HKD1.19 per Subscription Share which is equals to the closing price of HKD1.19 per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on the date of the Subscription Agreement, for an aggregate consideration of HKD1,549,975,000 (the "Subscription"). The nominal value of the Subscription Shares is USD13,025.

The Subscription Shares represent approximately 16.27% of the existing issued share capital of the Company and approximately 13.99% of the issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by the subscription. The Subscription Shares will be issued under the Specific Mandate and will rank pari passu with the existing Shares.

The Directors are of the view that the Subscription will bring in ITOCHU Corporation and CITIC Securities such two strong investors to the Group, and will further diversify the shareholding structure of the Company. The Subscription will also bring in global experiences and expertise from ITOCHU Corporation and CITIC Securities to the Group. Leveraging ITOCHU Corporation's experience in apparel wholesale, retailing and branding, the Company will be able to enhance its overall management capabilities, especially in brand management.

The aggregate gross proceeds from the Subscription will be HKD1,549,975,000 and the net proceeds from the Subscription, after deduction of expenses, would be approximately HKD1,544,975,000. The net price per Subscription Share after related expenses is approximately HKD1.186 per Subscription Share. The Company intends to use the net proceeds from the Subscription to (i) further develop the Group's businesses; and (ii) invest in opportunities that well match the Group's development.

As at the date of the Subscription Agreement, the Subscriber is a company indirectly wholly owned by Mr. Gao De Kang, the controlling shareholder of the Company, and hence, the Subscriber is a connected person of the Company under the Listing Rules. As such, the Subscription constituted a connected transaction for the Company and was subject to the announcement, reporting and independent shareholders' approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Further details of these transactions are set out in the Company's announcements dated April 24, 2015 and circulars dated May 29, 2015.

On June 18, 2015, the Subscription was not approved by the shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has entered into certain non-exempt continuing connected transactions with Mr. Gao Dekang and his associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) (other than members of the Group) (the "Parent Group"), which are subject to the reporting, announcement and/ or independent shareholders' approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Certain related party transactions as disclosed in Note 36 to the Financial Statements also constituted non-exempt continuing connected transactions which were required to be disclosed in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the above mentioned connected transactions.

Further details of these transactions are set out below, in the chapter headed "Relationship with Controlling Shareholders and Connected Transactions" of the Prospectus and in the Company's announcements dated March 11, 2010, January 9, 2012, April 22, 2013, June 26, 2014 and December 23, 2014 and circulars dated March 31, 2010, February 7, 2012, July 25, 2014 and January 21, 2015.

FRAMEWORK MANUFACTURING OUTSOURCING AND AGENCY AGREEMENT

The Group outsourced the manufacturing process of down apparel and OEM products to third party manufacturers and the Parent Group on a non-exclusive basis. Under the framework manufacturing outsourcing and agency agreement (the "Framework Manufacturing Outsourcing and Agency Agreement") entered into between the Company and Mr. Gao Dekang on September 15, 2007, the Parent Group shall provide labour, factory, premises, necessary equipment, water and electricity for the processing of the down apparel products of the Group. The processing fee is to be charged at the costs to be incurred for the processing services estimated by the Group. The information required for the estimations of the costs to be incurred for the processing services is transparent, as the Group can easily make reference to the prevailing market information relating to labour costs, rental of similar premises and the utilities expenses. The Group is also able to have access to or request the information of the monthly salary, rental, utilities expenses incurred by the Parent Group in the previous months for estimation of the actual cost to be incurred for each batch of down apparel products.

After determining cost to be incurred for the relevant batch of down apparel products of the Parent Group and the applicable mark-up rate ranging from 5% to 10% (depending on place, quantity and the turnaround time of the processing services required) (the "Estimated Cost"), the Company will then invite independent third parties to consider if they are able to provide the processing services on similar terms (i.e. quality, turnaround time, payment terms) at a fixed price (being the Estimated Cost) or any lower price they can offer.

The non-exclusive arrangement under the Framework Manufacturing Outsourcing and Agency Agreement allows the Group to appoint other outsourcing manufacturers for the processing of down apparel products if the terms offered by the Parent Group are not the most favourable to the Group. The previous charging basis of the mark-up of approximately 15% on the actual cost incurred for the processing services is prepared for the restructuring prior to the listing of the Company in 2007, and is no longer in use by the Group.

Should the terms offered by independent manufacturers be lower than the Estimated Cost with other terms better than or similar to those offered by the Parent Group, the Group will then appoint the other outsourcing manufacturers for the processing of down apparel products.

REPORT OF DIRECTORS

The Framework Manufacturing Outsourcing and Agency Agreement has an initial term of three years from September 15, 2007 to September 14, 2010 and has been renewed and further extended to September 14, 2014.

Subject to compliance by the Group with the relevant requirements applicable to continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules, the Framework Manufacturing Outsourcing and Agency Agreement is renewable at the option of the Company for another term of three years or such other term as agreed by the parties by giving at least three months' notice prior to the expiry of the term. Subject to the approval by the independent shareholders of the renewal of the Framework Manufacturing Outsourcing and Agency Agreement (including the proposed annual caps thereof), the Company has served the notice to the Parent Group indicating that it intended to renew the Agreement for a further term of up to September 14, 2017.

At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on February 6, 2015, the shareholders approved to revise the annual caps for the three financial years ended March 31, 2015, 2016 and 2017 to RMB770,000,000, RMB950,000,000 and RMB1,150,000,000, respectively. The actual amount of fees paid or payable by the Group to the Parent Group for the year ended March 31, 2015 was RMB693,992,000.

FRAMEWORK RAW MATERIAL PURCHASE AGREEMENT

The Group also purchased nanometre fabric from the Parent Group on a non-exclusive basis pursuant to the framework raw material purchase agreement (the "Framework Raw Material Purchase Agreement") dated September 15, 2007 entered into between the Company and Mr. Gao Dekang. Under this agreement, the amounts to be paid for the purchase of raw materials from the Parent Group for use in down apparel products shall be determined on an arm's length basis by reference to the prevailing market prices of the raw materials, in particular, nanometre fabric, for use in down apparel products or at rates comparable to the quality and prices of those similar products offered by the Parent Group to any other independent third party customers.

The term of the Framework Raw Material Purchase Agreement is three years, renewable at the option of the Company for another term of three years by giving at least three months' notice prior to the expiry of the initial term. Either party may terminate the Framework Raw Material Purchase Agreement at any time by giving at least three months' notice. The annual caps approved by the Board for each of the three financial years ended March 31, 2014, 2015 and 2016 were RMB11,500,000, RMB12,000,000 and RMB12,500,000, respectively.

The actual amount payable by the Group to the Parent Group for the year ended March 31, 2015 was RMB85,000.

PROPERTY LEASE AGREEMENT AND ITS SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENTS

The Parent Group leased 16 properties with a total area of approximately 106,002 square metres to the Group, which were used as the Group's regional offices, warehouses or staff dormitory, pursuant to the property lease agreement dated September 15, 2007 and agreements supplemental to the property lease agreement entered into between the Company and Mr. Gao Dekang.

Under the property lease agreement and its supplemental agreements, the annual rental paid and expected to be paid by the Group to the Parent Group for the leasing of properties have been determined on an arm's length basis by reference to the prevailing market condition in the PRC and the market rates of comparable properties, which in any event are not higher than the rent applicable to a third party tenant at the relevant time.

Pursuant to the property lease agreement dated September 15, 2007, the Parent Group leased 12 properties to the Group. The term of each lease granted under the property lease agreement shall be no more than 20 years. Under the property lease agreement, the Group may terminate a lease of any premise, by giving a 30-day prior notice, at any time prior to its expiry at its sole discretion and without penalty. The Parent Group, on the other hand, is not entitled to terminate any lease under the property lease agreement without the Group's consent.

In April 2009, the Company terminated the leases of three premises and on March 11, 2010, the Company and Mr. Gao Dekang entered into the supplemental property lease agreement, pursuant to which the Parent Group agreed to lease five additional premises to the Company for a term not exceeding 20 years from the date of the supplemental property lease agreement. On April 22, 2013, the Company and Mr. Gao Dekang entered into the second supplemental lease agreement pursuant to which the Parent Group agreed to lease additional premises in the PRC to the Group from time to time for a term not more than three years from April 1, 2013. The new leases to be entered into under the second supplemental lease agreement shall, subject to compliance by the Group with the relevant requirements applicable to continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules, be renewable at the option of the Company for another term of three years by giving at least three months' notice prior to the expiry of the term. The annual caps approved by the Board for the three financial years ended March 31, 2014, 2015 and 2016 were RMB33,000,000, RMB35,000,000 and RMB37,000,000, respectively.

The actual amount of rental payable by the Group to the Parent Group for the year ended March 31, 2015 was RMB18,391,000.

FRAMEWORK INTEGRATED SERVICE AGREEMENT

The Parent Group had also provided the Group with various ancillary services, which currently include the provision of hotel accommodation, property management services, which include repair and maintenance, security and general cleaning, for the properties occupied by the Group in the PRC, pursuant to the framework integrated service agreement (the "Framework Integrated Service Agreement") dated September 15, 2007 entered into between the Company and Mr. Gao Dekang.

The Framework Integrated Service Agreement has an initial term of three years from September 15, 2007 to September 14, 2010 and has been renewed and further extended to September 14, 2016. Subject to compliance by the Group with the relevant requirements applicable to continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules, the Framework Integrated Service Agreement is renewable at the option of the Company for another term of three years or such other term as agreed by the parties by giving at least three months' notice prior to the expiry of the term.

The service fees payable by the Group to the Parent Group under the Framework Integrated Service Agreement are determined by reference to (i) the rate set by the PRC Government, or (ii) the rate not higher than the rate recommended by the PRC Government (if the PRC Government has not fixed a rate), or (iii) the rate not higher than the market price for similar services or products provided in the vicinity or the market price for similar services or products provided in the PRC if no market price for similar services provided in the vicinity is available, or (iv) a fee agreed by the parties after taking into account the actual cost or reasonable cost (whichever is lower) plus reasonable profits for the provision of similar services or products if bases (i) to (iii) are not available.

REPORT OF DIRECTORS

The Board approved the new annual caps of RMB20,000,000, RMB25,000,000 and RMB30,000,000 for the three financial years ending March 31, 2014, 2015 and 2016, respectively, on April 22, 2013.

The actual amount of service fees payable by the Group to the Parent Group for the year ended March 31, 2015 was RMB8,828,000.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-executive Directors have confirmed that the continuing connected transactions set out above and in Note 36 to the Financial Statements were entered into:

- (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
- (ii) on normal commercial terms or on better terms to the Group than terms available to or from independent third parties; and
- (iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interest of the Company's shareholders as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Board engaged the Company's auditor to perform certain agreed-upon procedures in respect of the continuing connected transactions set out above on a sample basis. The auditor has reported their factual findings on the selected samples based on the agreed procedures to the Board and has confirmed that the continuing connected transactions set out above have complied with the requirements under Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme was conditionally approved by a resolution of the shareholders passed on September 10, 2007 and adopted by a resolution of the Board on September 15, 2007. The terms of the Share Option Scheme are in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract skilled and experienced personnel, to incentivise them to remain with the Group, to give effect to the Group's customer-focused corporate culture, and to motivate them to strive for the Group's future development and expansion, by providing them with the opportunity to acquire equity interests in the Company. The Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer any employee, management member or Director of the Company, or any of the Group's subsidiaries and third party service providers options ("Options") to subscribe for shares on the terms set out in the Share Option Scheme. The amount payable on acceptance of an Option is HKD1.00. Details of the Share Option Scheme were provided in the Prospectus.

Unless otherwise terminated by the Board or the Company's shareholders in general meeting in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years from the Listing Date, after which no further Options will be granted or offered, but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of any subsisting Option granted prior to the expiry of this 10-year period or otherwise as may be required in accordance with the provisions of the Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which Options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme when aggregated with the maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under any other scheme shall not exceed 10% of the Company's issued share capital on the Listing Date (such 10% representing 787,000,000 shares and approximately 9.83% of the Company's issued share capital as at the date of this annual report) without prior approval from the Company's shareholders. The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding Options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other Options granted and yet to be exercised under any other scheme shall not exceed 30% of the Company's issued share capital from time to time (such 30% representing 2,402,205,000 shares as at the date of this annual report). No Option may be granted to any person such that the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon the exercise of Options granted and to be granted to that person in any 12-month period up to the date of the latest grant exceeds 1% of the Company's issued share capital from time to time, unless the approval of the Company's shareholders is obtained.

The period within which the Options must be exercised will be specified by the Company at the time of grant, and must expire no later than 10 years from the date of grant of the Option (being the date on which the Board makes a written offer of grant of the Option to the relevant proposed beneficiary) unless the Company obtains separate shareholders' approval in relation to such grant.

The amount payable for each share to be subscribed for under an Option upon exercise shall be not less than the highest of (a) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheet on the date of grant, which must be a business day; (b) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheet for the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of the shares.

As at the date of this report, no Options had been granted under the Share Option Scheme by the Company.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries had not purchased, sold or redeemed any the Company's listed securities during the year ended March 31, 2015.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's articles of association and the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company's total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this annual report.

REPORT OF DIRECTORS

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

For the year ended March 31, 2015, the Group's five largest suppliers (comprising suppliers of down, fabric and ancillary materials) together accounted for less than 30% of the Group's total raw material purchases.

Zhongke Bosideng Nanotech Garment (Suzhou) Co., Ltd., the Group's supplier of fabric developed from nanotechnology, is 68% indirectly controlled by Mr. Gao Dekang and his associates. For the year ended March 31, 2015, no purchases made by the Group from this supplier. Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the Company (who or which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company's share capital) had any equity interest in any of the Group's major suppliers.

For the year ended March 31, 2015, the Group's five largest customers accounted for less than 30% of the Group's revenue. Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (who or which to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the Company's share capital) had any interest in any of the Group's major customers.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the commitments and contingent liabilities of the Group are set out in Note 35 to the Financial Statements.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Details of the Group's events after the balance sheet date up to the date of this report are set out in Note 37 to the Financial Statements.

AUDITOR

The Financial Statements have been audited by KPMG. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as the Company's auditor will be proposed at the Company's forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board Gao Dekang Chairman

Hong Kong, June 29, 2015

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT



Independent auditor's report to the shareholders of Bosideng International Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bosideng International Holdings Limited (the "Company") and its subsidiaries (together, the "Group") set out on pages 59 to 145, which comprise the consolidated and company balance sheets as at March 31, 2015, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors' responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at March 31, 2015 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants 8th Floor, Prince's Building 10 Chater Road Central, Hong Kong

June 29, 2015

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended March 31, 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi)

		For the year ended	Aarch 31,
	Note	2015	2014
		RMB'000	RMB'000
Revenue	5	6,292,569	8,237,894
Cost of sales		(3,422,560)	(4,122,438)
Gross profit		2,870,009	4,115,456
Other income	6	85,775	86,957
Selling and distribution expenses	7	(2,108,497)	(2,813,603)
Administrative expenses		(536,273)	(459,539)
Impairment losses on goodwill	18	(98,000)	(55,000)
Other expenses	6	(14,114)	(8,801)
Profit from operations		198,900	865,470
Finance income		166,890	184,169
Finance costs		(152,572)	(84,917)
Net finance income	10	14,318	99,252
Share of profits of associates, net of tax	32	24,871	17,585
Profit before income tax		238,089	982,307
Income tax expense	11	(100,166)	(279,969)
Profit for the year		137,923	702,338
Other comprehensive income for the year Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:			
Foreign currency translation differences			
– foreign operations		10,578	37,817
Change in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets		5,310	1,308
Available-for-sale financial assets reclassified to profit or loss on disposal		(2,588)	(14,031)
Income tax on items that may be reclassified subsequently to			(1.1/0017)
profit or loss	11(c)	(680)	3,181
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax		12,620	28,275
Total comprehensive income for the year		150,543	730,613

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended March 31, 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi)

	-	For the year ended March 31,		
	Note	2015	2014	
		RMB'000	RMB'000	
Profit attributable to:				
Equity shareholders of the Company		132,197	694,704	
Non-controlling interests		5,726	7,634	
Profit for the year		137,923	702,338	
Total comprehensive income attributable to: Equity shareholders of the Company Non-controlling interests		144,204 6,339	722,736 7,877	
Total comprehensive income for the year		150,543	730,613	
Earnings per share	15			
– basic (RMB cents)		1.66	8.73	
– diluted (RMB cents)		1.65	8.72	

The notes on pages 68 to 145 form part of these financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

At March 31, 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi)

		At March 31	1,
	Note	2015	2014
		RMB'000	RMB'000
N			
Non-current assets	16	062 750	001 222
Property, plant and equipment	16	962,750	991,332
Non-current other receivables	17	20.264	30,715
Lease prepayments	17	38,264	32,371
Intangible assets and goodwill	18	874,219	1,007,800
Investment properties	19	198,322	219,474
Interest in associates	32	222,456	167,585
Deferred tax assets	20	469,813	451,501
		2,765,824	2,900,778
Current assets			
Inventories	21	1,908,918	2,042,715
Trade, bills and other receivables	22	1,793,709	2,099,018
Receivables due from related parties	36	157,157	144,261
Prepayments for materials and service suppliers		128,714	334,161
Other financial assets	23	234,060	420,000
Available-for-sale financial assets	24	2,027,181	2,082,930
Pledged bank deposits	25	733,463	468,933
Time deposits with maturity over 3 months	26	268,900	147,400
Cash and cash equivalents	27	2,470,780	2,117,996
		9,722,882	9,857,414
Current liabilities			
Current income tax liabilities	11(d)	112,829	197,078
Interest-bearing borrowings	28	2,544,435	1,048,638
Trade and other payables	29	1,261,219	1,558,758
Payables due to related parties	36	1,484	2,806
		3,919,967	2,807,280
Net current assets		5,802,915	7,050,134
Total assets less current liabilities		8,568,739	9,950,912

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

At March 31, 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi)

	_	At March 3	1,
	Note	2015	2014
		RMB'000	RMB'000
Non-current liabilities			
Interest-bearing borrowings	28	993,194	2,210,514
Non-current other payables	30	_	181,691
Derivative financial liabilities	30	1,435	12,050
Deferred tax liabilities	20	160,211	169,424
		1,154,840	2,573,679
Net assets		7,413,899	7,377,233
Capital and reserves			
Share capital	33(c)	622	622
Reserves		7,184,594	7,154,267
Equity attributable to equity shareholders of the Company		7,185,216	7,154,889
Non-controlling interests		228,683	222,344
Total equity		7,413,899	7,377,233

Approved and authorized for issue by the board of directors on June 29, 2015.

Gao Dekang Chairman of the Board of Directors **Gao Miaoqin** Director

BALANCE SHEET

At March 31, 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi)

At March 31	Ι,			
Note	2015	2014		
	RMB'000	RMB'000		
16	4	30		
10	_	30,715		
31	2 002 397	2,076,466		
	2,002,557			
	2,002,401	2,107,211		
22	3,522	50,441		
	1,493,169	1,495,576		
27	135,743	130,603		
	1,632,434	1,676,620		
28	2,025,863	771,978		
29	10,460	4,558		
	2,036,323	776,536		
	(403,889)	900,084		
	1,598,512	3,007,295		
28	993,194	2,060,514		
	993,194	2,060,514		
	605 219	946,781		
	16 31 22 27 28 29 	Note 2015 RMB'000 4 16 4 - - 31 2,002,397 2,002,401 - 22 3,522 1,493,169 - 27 135,743 27 1,632,434 28 2,025,863 29 10,460 29 10,460 1,598,512 - 28 2,036,323 29 1,598,512 28 993,194		



At March 31, 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi)

	-	At March 31,		
	Note	2015	2014	
		RMB'000	RMB'000	
Capital and reserves				
Share capital	33(c)	622	622	
Reserves	33(d)	604,696	946,159	
Total equity		605,318	946,781	

Approved and authorized for issue by the board of directors on June 29, 2015.

Gao Dekang

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Gao Miaoqin

Director

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended March 31, 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi)

-				Attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company								
	Share capital RMB'000 (note 33)	Share premium RMB'000	Treasury shares held for the Share Award Scheme RMB'000 (note 31(b))	Capital reserves RMB'000 (note 33(d))	Statutory reserves RMB'000 (note 33(d))	Translation reserves RMB'000 (note 33(d))	Fair value reserves RMB'000 (note 33(d))	Other reserves RMB'000 (note 30)	Retained earnings RMB'000	Total RMB'000	Non- controlling interests RMB'000	Total equity RMB'000
Balance at March 31, 2013	622	794,521	(71,778)	76,066	756,301	(315,683)	8,356	(187,954)	6,037,936	7,098,387	187,281	7,285,668
Total comprehensive income for the year:												
Profit for the year	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	694,704	694,704	7,634	702,338
Foreign currency translation differences – foreign operations Net movement in the fair value	-	-	-	-	-	37,817	-	-	-	37,817	-	37,817
reserve of available-for-sale financial assets, net of tax	-	-	-	-	-	-	(9,785)	-	-	(9,785)	243	(9,542)
Total comprehensive income for the year	-	-	-	-	-	37,817	(9,785)	-	694,704	722,736	7,877	730,613
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity: Contribution from non-controlling												
interests Acquisition of non-controlling interests	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	- (4,929)	(4,929)	12,081 4,929	12,081
Partial disposal of interest in a subsidiary without losing control	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	(10,176)	(4,929)	4,929	-
Written put option to								(7,4,47)			10,170	(7.4.4)
non-controlling interests (note 30) Appropriation to reserves	-	-	-	-	- 66,391	-	-	(7,146)	- (66,391)	(7,146)	-	(7,146) -
Dividends	-	(643,983)	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	(643,983)	-	(643,983)
Balance at March 31, 2014	622	150,538	(71,778)	76,066	822,692	(277,866)	(1,429)	(195,100)	6,651,144	7,154,889	222,344	7,377,233
Balance at March 31, 2014 Total comprehensive income for the year:	622	150,538	(71,778)	76,066	822,692	(277,866)	(1,429)	(195,100)	6,651,144	7,154,889	222,344	7,377,233
Profit for the year	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	132,197	132,197	5,726	137,923
Foreign currency translation differences – foreign operations Net movement in the fair value	-	-	-	-	-	10,578	-	-	-	10,578	-	10,578
reserve of available-for-sale financial assets, net of tax	-	-	-	-	-	-	1,429	-	-	1,429	613	2,042
Total comprehensive income for the year	-	-	-	-	-	10,578	1,429	-	132,197	144,204	6,339	150,543
Transactions with owners, recorded directly in equity: Written put option to												
non-controlling interests (note 30)	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	87,991	-	87,991	-	87,991
Appropriation to reserves Dividends	-	- (150,538)	-	-	1,423	-	-	-	(1,423) (51,330)	_ (201,868)	-	- (201,868)
			(71,778)									7,413,899

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the year ended March 31, 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi)

	For the year ended March 31,		
	2015	2014	
	RMB'000	RMB'000	
Operating activities			
Profit for the year	137,923	702,338	
Adjustments for:			
Income tax expense	100,166	279,969	
Depreciation	143,036	109,856	
Amortization	36,635	36,613	
Gains on disposal of a subsidiary	_	(6,314	
Gains on disposal of lease prepayments	(1,177)	(0)011	
Impairment losses	98,000	55,000	
Change in fair value of contingent considerations	(659)	(4,723	
Change in fair value of derivative financial liabilities	(10,615)	1,650	
Net interest income			
	(55,428)	(88,503	
Share of profits of associates	(24,871)	(17,585	
Operating profit before changes in working capital	423,010	1,068,301	
Decrease/(increase) in inventories	133,797	(71,722	
Decrease/(increase) in trade, bills and other receivables and prepayments	501,408	(500,622	
Increase in receivables due from related parties	(12,896)	(49,866	
Decrease trade and other payables	(343,406)	(53,426	
Decrease in payables due to related parties	(1,322)	(9,431	
Cash generated from operations	700,591	383,234	
Interest paid	(100,188)	(65,742	
Income tax paid	(212,620)	(468,130	
Net cash generated/(used in) from operating activities	387,783	(150,638	
Investing activities			
Disposal of a subsidiary, net of cash disposed of	_	491	
Investment in associates	(30,000)	_	
Collection of deposits in connection with a potential acquisition	40,063	_	
Deposits in connection with a potential acquisition		(40,047	
Acquisition of associates		(150,000	
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment	(185,493)		
Acquisition of lease prepayments		(239,936	
	(8,343)	-	
Addition of investment properties	(115)	(603	
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment	10,065	17,411	
Proceeds from disposal of lease prepayment	2,573	-	
Acquisition of available-for-sale financial assets	(5,484,590)	(3,446,200	
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale financial assets	5,543,061	3,011,360	
Acquisition of other financial assets	(234,060)	(620,000	
Proceeds from disposal of other financial assets	420,000	660,000	
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits	8,890	(12,506	
(Increase)/decrease in time deposits with maturity over 3 months	(121,500)	85,830	
Interest received	155,616	136,216	
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities	116,167	(597,984	

The notes on pages 68 to 145 form part of these financial statements.

	For the year ended	For the year ended March 31,		
	2015 RMB'000	2014 RMB'000		
Financing activities				
Proceeds from interest-bearing borrowings	1,062,188	2,348,796		
Repayment of interest-bearing borrowings	(783,711)	(1,745,730		
Increase in bank deposits pledged for bank loans	(110,000)	(140,000		
(Increase)/decrease in bank deposits pledged for issuing standby letters of				
credit for bank loans	(163,420)	1,096,354		
Dividends paid	(201,868)	(643,983		
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities	(196,811)	915,437		
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents	307,139	166,815		
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year	2,117,996	1,935,356		
Effect of foreign currency exchange rate changes	45,645	15,825		

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 GENERAL INFORMATION OF THE REPORTING ENTITY

Bosideng International Holdings Limited (the "Company") was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on July 10, 2006 as an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. Its registered address is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the "Group") are principally engaged in the research, design and development, raw materials procurement, outsourced manufacturing, marketing and distribution of branded down apparel products, original equipment manufacturing ("OEM") products and non-down apparel products in the People's Republic of China (the "PRC").

The Company's shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange") on October 11, 2007 (the "Listing Date").

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable individual International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards ("IASs") and Interpretations issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB"). These financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, which for this financial year and the comparative period, as permitted by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Listing Rules"), continue to be those of the predecessor Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32). These financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out in note 3.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are first effective or available for early adoption for the current accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 2(e) provides information on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application of these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these financial statements.

(b) Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for available-for-sale financial assets, contingent considerations payable and derivative financial liabilities measured at fair value in the consolidated balance sheet.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(c) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured using the currency that best reflects the economic substance of the underlying events and circumstances relevant to the entity ("functional currency"). These financial statements are presented in Renminbi ("RMB", the "presentation currency"). All financial information presented in RMB has been rounded to the nearest thousand except otherwise stated. The functional currency of the Company is United States Dollars.

(d) Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRSs requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Judgments made by management in the application of IFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated financial statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty are discussed in note 4.

(e) Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued the following amendments to IFRSs and one new Interpretation that are first effective for the current accounting period of the Group. Of these, the following developments are relevant to the Group's financial statements:

- Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27, Investment entities
- Amendments to IAS 32, Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
- Amendments to IAS 36, Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial assets
- Amendments to IAS 39, Novation of derivatives and continuation of hedge accounting
- IFRIC 21, Levies

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the current accounting period.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

(e) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 27, Investment entities

The amendments provide consolidation relief to those parents which qualify to be an investment entity as defined in the amended IFRS 10. Investment entities are required to measure their subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss. These amendments do not have an impact on these financial statements as the Company does not qualify to be an investment entity.

Amendments to IAS 32, Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

The amendments to IAS 32 clarify the offsetting criteria in IAS 32. The amendments do not have an impact on these financial statements as they are consistent with the policies already adopted by the Group.

Amendments to IAS 36, Recoverable amount disclosures for non-financial assets

The amendments to IAS 36 modify the disclosure requirements for impaired non-financial assets. Among them, the amendments expand the disclosures required for an impaired asset or CGU whose recoverable amount is based on fair value less costs of disposal. The amendments do not have an impact on these financial statements as the recoverable amounts of the Group's non-financial assets are estimated based on the value in use.

Amendments to IAS 39, Novation of derivatives and continuation of hedge accounting

The amendments to IAS 39 provide relief from discontinuing hedge accounting when novation of a derivative designated as a hedging instrument meets certain criteria. The amendments do not have an impact on these financial statements as the Group has not novated any of its derivatives.

IFRIC 21, Levies

The Interpretation provides guidance on when a liability to pay a levy imposed by a government should be recognised. The amendments do not have an impact on these financial statements as the guidance is consistent with the Group's existing accounting policies.
3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements, and have been applied consistently by the Group entities.

(a) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial statements from the date that control commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealized profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealized losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way as unrealized gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders of those interests which would result in the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a financial liability. For each business combination, the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests' proportionate share of the subsidiary's net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year between non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders of non-controlling interests and other contractual obligations towards these holders are presented as financial liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet in accordance with notes 3(m) or (n) depending on the nature of the liability.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(a) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Changes in the Group's interests in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is recognized.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being recognized in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is recognized at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset (when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate (see note 3(b)).

In the Company's balance sheet, investment in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment losses (see note 3(j)).

(b) Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has significant influence, but not control or joint control, over its management, including participation in the financial and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated financial statements under the equity method, unless it is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale). Under the equity method, the investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess of the Group's share of the acquisition-date fair values of the investee's identifiable net assets over the cost of the investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the post acquisition change in the Group's share of the investee's net assets and any impairment loss relating to the investment (see note 3(c) and (j)). Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group's share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees and any impairment losses for the year are recognized in profit or loss, whereas the Group's share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees' other comprehensive income is recognized in other comprehensive income.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate, the Group's interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For this purpose, the Group's interest is the carrying amount of the investment under the equity method together with the Group's long-term interests that in substance form part of the Group's net investment in the associate.

(b) Associates (continued)

Unrealized profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the investee, except where unrealized losses provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or vice versa, retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity method.

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss being recognized in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at the date when significant influence is lost is recognized at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset (see note 3(d)).

In the Company's balance sheet, investments in associates are stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 3(j)).

(c) Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

- (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree; over
- (ii) the net fair value of the acquiree's identifiable assets and liabilities measured as at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then this excess is recognized immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each cash-generating unit, or groups of cash generating units, that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination and is tested annually for impairment (see note 3(j)).

On disposal of a cash generating unit during the year, any attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d) Other investments in debt and equity securities

The Group's and the Company's policies for investments in debt and equity securities, other than investments in subsidiaries and associates, are as follows:

Investments in debt and equity securities are initially stated at fair value, which is their transaction price unless it is determined that the fair value at initial recognition differs from the transaction price and that fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets. Cost includes attributable transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise below. These investments are subsequently accounted for as follows, depending on their classification:

Investments in securities held for trading are classified as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. At the each balance sheet date the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognized in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognized in profit or loss does not include any dividends or interest earned on these investments as these are recognized in accordance with the policies set out in note 3(v).

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the Company have the positive ability and intention to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity securities. Held-to-maturity securities are stated at amortized cost less impairment losses (see note 3(j)).

Investments in securities which do not fall into any of the above categories are classified as available-for-sale securities. At each balance sheet date the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in the fair value reserve. Interest income from debt securities calculated using the effective interest method are recognized in profit or loss in accordance with the policies set out in notes 3(v). Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from changes in the amortized cost of debt securities are also recognized in profit or loss.

When the investments are derecognized or impaired (see note 3(j)), the cumulative gain or loss recognized in equity is reclassified to profit or loss. Investments are recognized/derecognized on the date the Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they expire.

(e) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value. At each balance sheet date the fair value is remeasured. The gain or loss on the remeasurement to fair value is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

(f) Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are owned to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation. These include land held for a currently undetermined future use and property that is being constructed or developed for future use as investment property.

Investment properties are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note 3(j)). Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the investment property. Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of 20 to 60 years. Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are re-assessed at each balance sheet date and adjusted if appropriate.

(g) Property, plant and equipment

(i) Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note 3(j)).

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials, direct labor, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are located, and an appropriate proportion of production overheads and borrowing costs (see note 3(u)). Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalized as part of that equipment.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the cost or valuation of the item is allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are recognized in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal. Any related revaluation surplus is transferred from the revaluation reserve to retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(ii) Reclassification to investment property

When the use of a property changes from owner-occupied to investment property, the property is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note 3(j)).

(iii) Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the component will flow to the Group, and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. Ongoing repairs and maintenance is expensed as incurred.

(iv) Depreciation

Depreciation is based on the cost of an asset less its residual value. Significant components of individual assets are assessed and if a component has a useful life that is different from the remainder of that asset, that component is depreciated separately. Freehold land with unlimited useful life is measured at cost and not depreciated.

Depreciation is recognized in profit or loss using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of each component of an item of property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of items of property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value, if any, using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

	Useful lives	Residual value
Buildings Machinery Motor vehicles and others Leasehold improvement	20-60 years 5-10 years 2-10 years Over the shorter of the un-expired term of the lease and 3 years	0%~10% 4%~10% 0% ~10% 0%
	icase and 5 years	

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted if appropriate.

(h) Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

(i) Customer relationships

Customer relationships acquired by the Group upon acquisition of subsidiaries are measured at fair value upon initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, customer relationships are measured at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses (see note 3(j)). The estimated useful life of customer relationships is 8 to 15 years. The amortization method and useful lives are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

(ii) Trademarks

Separately acquired trademarks are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses (see note 3(j)). Trademarks acquired in a business combination are recognized initially at fair value at the acquisition date and subsequently carried at the amount initially recognized less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of trademarks that have definite useful lives is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the costs of acquired trademarks over their estimated useful lives of 10 to 20 years.

(iii) Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which it relates. All other expenditure, including expenditure on internally generated goodwill and trademarks, is recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

(iv) Amortization

Except for goodwill, intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis in profit or loss over their estimated useful lives, from the date that they are available for use.

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted if appropriate.

(i) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

(i) Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments represent prepayments of land use rights paid to the various PRC land bureaus. Lease prepayments are carried at cost less amortization and accumulated impairment losses (see note 3(j)). Amortization is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the land use rights, which are 50 years from the respective dates that they are available for use.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i) Leased assets (continued)

(ii) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases, payments made under the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal installments over the accounting periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognized in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

(j) Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of investments in debt and equity securities and other receivables

Investments in debt and equity securities and other current and non-current receivables that are stated at cost or amortized cost or are classified as available-for-sale securities are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes observable data that comes to the attention of the Group about one or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
- a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;
- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization;
- significant changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor; and
- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is determined and recognized as follows:

- For investments in associates accounted for under the equity method in the consolidated financial statements (see note 3(b)), the impairment loss is measured by comparing the recoverable amount of the investment with its carrying amount in accordance with note 3(j)(ii). The impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favorable change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount in accordance with note 3(j)(ii).

(j) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in debt securities and other receivables (continued)

For trade and other current receivables and other financial assets carried at amortized cost, the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition of these assets), where the effect of discounting is material. This assessment is made collectively where these financial assets share similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due status, and have not been individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which are assessed for impairment collectively are based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized, the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset's carrying amount exceeding that which would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized in prior years.

For available-for-sale securities, the cumulative loss that has been recognized in the fair value reserve is reclassified to profit or loss. The amount of the cumulative loss that is recognized in profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and amortization) and current fair value, less any impairment loss on that asset previously recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognized in profit or loss in respect of available-for-sale equity securities are not reversed through profit or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of such assets is recognized in other comprehensive income.

Impairment losses in respect of available-for-sale debt securities are reversed if the subsequent increase in fair value can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized. Reversals of impairment losses in such circumstances are recognized in profit or loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the corresponding assets directly, except for impairment losses recognized in respect of trade receivables and bills receivable included within trade and other receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written off against trade receivables and bills receivable directly and any amounts held in the allowance account relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to the allowance account are reversed against the allowance account. Other changes in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are recognized in profit or loss.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(j) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify indications that the following assets may be impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously recognized no longer exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;
- investment properties;
- lease prepayments;
- intangible assets;
- goodwill; and
- investment in subsidiaries in the Company's balance sheet.

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill, intangible assets that are not yet available for use and intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not there is any indication of impairment.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognized in respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if determinable).

(j) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favorable change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset's carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are credited to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are recognized.

(iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is required to prepare an interim financial report in compliance with IAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in respect of the first six months of the financial year. At the end of the interim period, the Group applies the same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the financial year (see notes 3(j)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognized in an interim period in respect of goodwill carried at cost are not reversed in a subsequent period. This is the case even if no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been recognized had the impairment been assessed only at the end of the financial year to which the interim period relates.

(k) Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of production or conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those inventories is recognized as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is recognized. The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realizable value and all losses of inventories are recognized as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognized as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognized as an expense in the period as an expense in the period as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(I) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognized at fair value and thereafter stated at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see note 3(j)), except where the receivables are interest-free loans made to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

(m) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognized initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortized cost with any difference between the amount initially recognized and redemption value being recognized in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

(n) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognized at fair value and are subsequently stated at amortized cost unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(o) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash management are also included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement.

(p) Employee benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash bonus or profit-sharing plans if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

(p) Employee benefits (continued)

(ii) Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognized as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which services are rendered by employees. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available. Contributions to a defined contribution plan that is due more than 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the service are discounted to their present value.

(iii) Share-based payment transactions

The fair value of share options granted to employees is recognized as an employee cost with a corresponding increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value is measured at grant date using the binomial lattice model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the options were granted. Where the employees have to meet vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the total estimated fair value of the options is spread over the vesting period, taking into account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognized in prior years is charged/credited to the profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount recognized as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market price of the Company's shares. The equity amount is recognized in the capital reserve until either the option is exercised (when it is included in the amount recognized in share capital for the shares issued) or the option expires (when it is released directly to retained profits).

Share-based payment transactions in which the Company grants shares to its subsidiaries' employees are accounted for as an increase in value of investment in subsidiaries in the Company's balance sheet which is eliminated on consolidation.

(iv) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognized at the earlier of when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and when it recognizes restructuring costs involving the payment of termination benefits.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(q) Income tax

Income tax expense for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilized, are recognized. Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences include those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same criteria are adopted when determining whether existing taxable temporary differences support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected to a to reverse in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilized.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a business combination), and temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the future.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilized. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available.

(q) Income tax (continued)

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognized when the liability to pay the related dividends is recognized.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein, are presented separately from each other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or the Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either:
 - the same taxable entity; or
 - different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realize the current tax assets and settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or realize and settle simultaneously.

(r) Provisions and contingent liabilities

(i) Contingent liabilities assumed in business combinations

Contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination which are present obligations at the date of acquisition are initially recognized at fair value, provided the fair value can be reliably measured. After their initial recognition at fair value, such contingent liabilities are recognized at the higher of the amount initially recognized, less accumulated amortization where appropriate, and the amount that would be determined in accordance with note 3(r)(ii).

(ii) Other provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized for other liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event. It is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(s) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognized in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods in the course of ordinary activities is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of value-added tax ("VAT") or other sales taxes, returns or allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. Revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence exists, usually in the form of an executed sales agreement, that the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyers, recovery of the consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can be estimated reliably, there is no continuing management involvement with the goods, and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. If it is probable that discounts will be granted and the amount can be measured reliably, then the discount is recognized as a reduction of revenue as the sales are recognized.

Sales of branded down apparel products and non-down apparel products to distributors in the PRC and sales of OEM apparels overseas are recognized in accordance with the terms of delivery, provided the collectability of sales proceeds is reasonably assured. Sales of branded down apparel products and non-down apparel products through department stores and retail stores are recognized at the time of sale to the retail end customers.

(ii) Rendering of services

Revenue from services rendered is recognized in profit or loss in proportion to the stage of completion of the transaction at the balance sheet date. The stage of completion is assessed by reference to surveys of work performed.

(iii) Government grants

Government grants are recognized in the balance sheet initially when there is reasonable assurance that they will be received and that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching to them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses incurred are recognized as income in profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and consequently are effectively recognized in profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation expense.

(iv) Royalty income

Royalties arising from the use by others of the Group's brands are recognized in profit or loss as other income on an accrual basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreements.

(s) Revenue recognition (continued)

(v) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is recognized in profit or loss in equal installments over the periods covered by the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are recognized in profit or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments receivable. Contingent rentals are recognized as income in the accounting period in which they are earned.

(t) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated to the respective functional currencies of Group entities at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into RMB at the exchange rates approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance sheet items, including goodwill arising on consolidation of foreign operations acquired are translated into RMB at the closing foreign exchange rates at the balance sheet date. The resulting exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in the foreign currency translation reserve ("translation reserve").

On disposed of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount in the translation reserve relating to that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognized.

When the settlement of a monetary item receivable from or payable to a foreign operation is neither planned nor likely in the foreseeable future, foreign exchange gains and losses arising from such a monetary item are considered to form part of a net investment in a foreign operation and are recognized directly in other comprehensive income, and presented in the translation reserve in equity.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalization of borrowing costs as part of the costs of the qualifying assets commences when expenditures for the asset are being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the qualifying assets ready for their intended use or sale are interrupted or complete.

(v) Finance income and costs

Finance income comprises interest income on funds invested (including investment in other financial assets and available-for-sale financial assets), and gains on the disposal of available-for-sale financial assets. Interest income is recognized as it accrues using the effective interest method.

Finance costs comprise interest expenses on borrowings, fair value change of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial liabilities, losses on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets, bank charges and foreign currency losses and other interest expense.

Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis as either finance income or finance cost depending on whether foreign currency movements are in a net gain or net loss position.

(w) Related parties

- (a) A person, or a close member of that person's family, is related to the Group if that person:
 - (i) has control or joint control over the Group;
 - (ii) has significant influence over the Group; or
 - (iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or the Group's parent.

(w) Related parties (continued)

- (b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applies:
 - (i) The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).
 - (ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member).
 - (iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.
 - (iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.
 - (v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group.
 - (vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).
 - (vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

(x) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported in the financial statements, are identified from the financial information provided regularly to the Group's most senior executive management for the purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature of products and services, the nature of production processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute the products or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

4 ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND ESTIMATES

(a) Critical accounting judgments in applying the Group's accounting policies

Information about judgments made in applying the Group's accounting that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements is included in the following notes:

- Note 31(b) consolidation: whether the Group has control over a trust;
- Note 35(b) lease classification.

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty

Notes 11, 18, 20, 22 and 34 contain information about the assumptions and their risk factors relating to income tax, goodwill impairment, impairment for bad and doubtful debts and fair value of financial instruments. Other key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows:

(i) Net realizable value of inventories

Net realizable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and selling expenses. These estimates are based on the current market conditions and the historical experience of distributing and selling products of similar nature (such as the estimated timing of inventories to be used or sold and the estimated selling price of inventories in accordance with the Group's sales and marketing strategies formulated with reference to the market and weather conditions as well as customers' preference and purchasing power). They could change significantly as a result of competitors' actions in response to severe industry cycles or other changes in market conditions. Management will reassess the estimates at each balance sheet date.

(ii) Depreciation and Amortization

The management reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets regularly in order to determine the amount of depreciation and amortization charge for the year. The management determines the remaining useful life of the acquired customer relationships and trademarks based on management's expertise in the industry. It could change significantly as a result of changes in the market. The useful lives of other assets are based on the Group's historical experience with similar assets and taking into account anticipated technological changes. The depreciation and amortization expenses for future periods are adjusted if there are significant changes from previous estimates.

4 ACCOUNTING JUDGMENT AND ESTIMATES (continued)

(b) Sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

(iii) Impairment for non-current assets

The management determines the impairment loss on non-current assets other than goodwill if circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment. The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed periodically in order to assess whether the recoverable amounts have declined below the carrying amounts. These assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their recorded carrying amounts may not be recoverable. When such a decline has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less costs to sell and the value in use. In determining the value in use, expected cash flows generated by the asset are discounted to their present value, which requires significant judgment relating to level of sales volume, sales revenue and amount of operating costs. The Group uses all readily available information in determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation of recoverable amount, including estimates based on reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections of sales volume, sales revenue and amount of operating costs.

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group manages its businesses by divisions, which are organized by business lines (products and services). In a manner consistent with the way in which information is reported internally to the Group's most senior executive management for the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment, the Group has identified the following three major reportable segments. No operating segments have been aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

- Down apparels The down apparel segment carries on the business of sourcing and distributing branded down apparels.
- OEM management The OEM management segment carries on the business of sourcing and distributing OEM products.
- Non-down apparels The non-down apparel segment carries on the business of sourcing and distributing non-seasonal apparels, including branded apparels of menswear, ladieswear and casual wear.

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(a) Segment results

		For the year ended	March 31, 2015	
	Down	OEM	Non-down	
	apparels	management	apparels	Group
	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000
Revenue from external customers	4,079,842	1,201,806	1,010,921	6,292,569
nter-segment revenue	-	1,238	22,616	23,854
Reportable segment revenues	4,079,842	1,203,044	1,033,537	6,316,423
Reportable segment profit from operations	306,254	128,695	(8,678)	426,271
	500,254	120,095	(8,078)	420,271
Depreciation	(59,937)	(223)	(56,481)	(116,641
hare of profits of associates	-	-	24,871	24,871
mpairment losses on goodwill	-	-	(98,000)	(98,000)
		For the year ended	March 31, 2014	
	Daura		Non down	

	For the year ended March 31, 2014			
	Down	OEM	Non-down	
	apparels	management	apparels	Group
	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000
Revenue from external customers	6,056,663	880,517	1,300,714	8,237,894
Inter-segment revenue	-	536	58,375	58,911
Reportable segment revenues	6,056,663	881,053	1,359,089	8,296,805
Reportable segment profit				
from operations	650,332	142,990	190,626	983,948
Depreciation	(58,586)	(308)	(50,962)	(109,856)
Share of profits of associates	-	-	17,585	17,585
Impairment losses on goodwill	-		(55,000)	(55,000)

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit before income tax

	For the year ended	For the year ended March 31,	
	2015	2014	
	RMB'000	RMB'000	
Revenue			
Reportable segment revenues	6,316,423	8,296,805	
Elimination of inter-segment revenue	(23,854)	(58,911)	
Consolidated revenue	6,292,569	8,237,894	

	For the year ended March 31,	
	2015	2014
	RMB'000	RMB'000
Profit before income tax		
Reportable segment profit derived from		
the Group's external customers	426,271	983,948
Amortization expenses	(36,635)	(36,613)
Government grants	69,560	66,228
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary	-	6,314
Gain on disposal of lease prepayments	1,177	-
Impairment losses	(98,000)	(55,000)
Unallocated expenses	(138,602)	(81,822)
Finance income	166,890	184,169
Finance costs	(152,572)	(84,917)
Consolidated profit before income tax	238,089	982,307

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)

(c) Geographic information

Except for land and buildings and investment properties with the aggregate carrying amount of RMB281,913,000 (2014: RMB319,987,000) located in the United Kingdom, all of the Group's property, plant and equipment and investment properties are located in mainland China at March 31, 2015.

The geographical location of an asset is based on the physical location of the asset, in the case of property, plant and equipment and investment property, and the location of the operation to which they are allocated, in the case of intangible assets.

For the year ended March 31, 2015, except for revenue of RMB10,040,000 derived from the Group's European operation (2014: RMB9,785,000), all revenue is derived from the PRC.

6 OTHER INCOME/(EXPENSES)

		For the year ended March 31,	
	Note	2015	2014
		RMB'000	RMB'000
Doualty in come	(;)	15 039	14 415
Royalty income Government grants	(i) (ii)	15,038 69,560	14,415 66,228
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary		-	6,314
Gain on disposal of lease prepayments		1,177	_
Other income		85,775	86,957
Other expenses – Donations		(14,114)	(8,801)

(i) Royalty income arises from the use by other entities of the Group's brands.

(ii) The Group received unconditional discretionary grants amounting to RMB69,560,000 for the year ended March 31, 2015 (2014: RMB66,228,000) from various local PRC government authorities in recognition of the Group's contribution to the development of the local economies.

7 SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

	For the year ended	March 31,
	2015	2014
	RMB'000	RMB'000
Advertising	205,271	353,586
Promotion	268,819	532,120
Concessionaire fees	698,860	795,003
Personnel expenses	594,807	723,320
Tax and surcharges	36,670	62,109
Entertainment and travelling	35,940	75,757
Depreciation	59,675	59,315
Rental	136,975	160,651
Amortization	35,581	35,872
Others	35,899	15,870
T		2 012 60
Total	2,108,497	2,813,603

8 PERSONNEL EXPENSES

	For the year ended March 31,	
	2015	2014
	RMB'000	RMB'000
Salaries, wages and other benefits	749,048	864,187
Contributions to defined contribution plans	64,723	61,334
	813,771	925,521

Contributions made by the Group to pension funds are dealt with in profit or loss when incurred. The Group contributes to pension funds based on certain percentages of the average salary level according to the pension fund requirements of the various provinces in the PRC in which its operations are located. The Group remits all pension fund contributions to the respective social security offices, which are responsible for the payment and liabilities relating to the pension funds.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of retirement benefits other than the contributions described above.

9 EXPENSES BY NATURE

The following expenses are included in cost of sales, selling and distribution expenses and administrative expenses:

	For the year ended March 31,	
	2015	2014 RMB'000
	RMB'000	
Cost of inventories recognized as expenses included in cost of sales	3,490,199	4,024,009
(Reversal)/write down of inventories to their net realizable value	(67,639)	98,429
Depreciation		
- Assets leased out under operating leases	7,988	1,333
– Other assets	135,048	108,523
Amortization	36,635	36,613
Operating lease charges	174,379	201,828
Reversal for impairment of bad and doubtful debts	(7,941)	(22,073)
Auditors' remuneration	6,600	6,600

10 NET FINANCE INCOME

	For the year ended March 31,	
	2015	2014
	RMB'000	RMB'000
Recognized in profit or loss:		
Interest income on bank deposits	36,293	52,432
Interest income on available-for-sale financial assets	104,719	86,270
Interest income on other financial assets	14,604	15,543
Total interest income on financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss	155,616	154,245
Change in fair value of contingent consideration payables (note 30)	659	4,723
Change in fair value of derivative financial liabilities (note 30)	10,615	-
Net foreign exchange gain	-	25,201
Finance income	166,890	184,169
Interest on interest-bearing borrowings	(100,188)	(65,742
Bank charges	(8,179)	(17,525
Change in fair value of derivative financial liabilities (note 30)	-	(1,650
Net foreign exchange loss	(44,205)	-
Finance costs	(152,572)	(84,917
Net finance income recognized in profit or loss	14,318	99,252

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

(a) Income tax in profit or loss represents:

	For the year ended March 31,	
	2015	2014
	RMB'000	RMB'000
Current tax expenses		
Provision for PRC income tax	128,371	398,078
Deferred tax benefit		
Origination of temporary differences (note 20(a))	(28,205)	(118,109)
	100,166	279,969

- (i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands.
- (ii) No tax provision has been made for Bosideng America Inc., Bosideng UK Limited and Bosideng Retail Limited, as they do not have any assessable profits subject to income tax in the United States or the United Kingdom during the year.
- (iii) No tax provision has been made for Talent Shine Limited, Hong Kong Bestmate Limited, Bosideng International Fashion Limited, Long Pacific (H.K.) Ltd. and Rocawear (China) Limited, as they do not have any assessable profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax during the year.
- (iv) The provision for PRC income tax is based on the respective applicable rates on the estimated assessable income of each of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC as determined in accordance with the relevant income tax rules and regulations of the PRC.

For the year ended March 31, 2015, the standard income tax rate for all domestic companies established in the PRC was 25%, except for Shanghai Bosideng Information Technology Co., Ltd., a software enterprise in the PRC, which was granted a tax holiday by the local tax bureau of tax-exemption for 2 years starting from January 1, 2012 and 50% reduction on the applicable income tax rates for 3 years starting from January 1, 2014.

The effective tax rate for the year ended March 31, 2015 was approximately 42.1%, higher than the standard PRC income tax rate of 25%, which was mainly attributable to the combined effect of non-deductible expenses, tax losses of certain subsidiaries of the Group not recognized as deferred tax assets and tax preferential rate enjoyed by the subsidiary mentioned above.

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

(b) Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

	For the year ended March 31,	
	2015	2014
	RMB'000	RMB'000
Profit before income tax	238,089	982,307
Income tax at the applicable PRC income tax rate of 25%	59,522	245,577
Tax losses not recognized as deferred tax assets	14,057	32,283
Non-deductible expenses	43,570	56,316
Effect of tax concessions of PRC operations	(24,334)	(52,535)
Others	7,351	(1,672)
Income tax expense	100,166	279,969

(c) Income tax recognized in other comprehensive income:

	For the year ended March 31,					
		2015			2014	
	Before tax		Net of tax	Before tax		Net of tax
	amount	Tax expense	amount	amount	Tax expense	amount
	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000
Foreign currency translation						
differences – foreign operations	10,578	-	10,578	37,817	-	37,817
Net movement in the fair value						
reserve of available-for-sale						
financial assets	2,722	(680)	2,042	(12,723)	3,181	(9,542)
Other comprehensive income	13,300	(680)	12,620	25,094	3,181	28,275

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

(d) Income tax payable in the consolidated balance sheet represents:

	For the year ended March 31,		
	2015		
	RMB'000	RMB'000	
Balance at beginning of the year	197,078	267,130	
Provision for current income tax for the year	128,371	398,078	
Payments during the year	(212,620)	(468,130)	
Income tax payable at the end of the year	112,829	197,078	

12 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Directors' remuneration disclosed to section 161 of the predecessor Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), is as follows:

For the year ended March 31, 2015

	Directors' fees RMB'000	Salaries, allowances and other benefits in kind RMB'000	Discretionary bonuses RMB'000	Equity-settled share-based payments RMB'000	Contributions to defined contribution schemes RMB'000	Total RMB'000
Executive directors						
Gao Dekang	480	4,665	_	_	_	5,145
Mei Dong	180	2,215	_	_	76	2,471
Gao Miaoqin	180	1,020	-	-	-	1,200
Kong Shengyuan (resigned with		.,				.,
effect from May 15, 2014)	22	_	_	_	_	22
Huang Qiaolian	180	1,191	-	-	29	1,400
Mak Yun Kuen	180	1,940	-	-	14	2,134
Rui Jinsong	180	1,416	-	-	20	1,616
Independent non-executive						
directors						
Dong Binggen	330	-	-	-	-	330
Wang Yao	330	-	-	-	-	330
Ngai Wai Fung	385	-	-	-	-	385
Lian Jie	330	-	-	-	-	330
	2,777	12,447	-	-	139	15,363

12 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued)

For the year ended March 31, 2014

Directors' fees RMB'000	Salaries, allowances and other benefits in kind RMB'000	Discretionary bonuses RMB'000	Equity-settled share-based payments RMB'000	Contributions to defined contribution schemes RMB'000	Tota RMB'000
480	4,660	-	-	-	5,140
180	2,259	-	-	72	2,51
180	1,017	-	-	-	1,197
180	126	-	-	1	307
180	1,033	-	-	30	1,243
15	-	-	-	6	2
165	1,485	-	-	14	1,664
165	1,563	-	-	20	1,748
_	-	-	-	-	-
330	-	-	-	-	33(
28	-	-	-	-	28
330	-	-	-	-	330
385	-	-	-	-	385
240	-		-	-	240
2,858	12,143	_	_	143	15,144
	fees RMB'000 480 180 180 180 15 165 165 165 165 330 330 28 330 385 240	allowances and other Directors' benefits fees in kind RMB'000 RMB'000 480 4,660 180 2,259 180 1,017 180 1,026 180 1,033 15 - 165 1,485 165 1,563 330 - 330 - 28 - 330 - 330 - 28 - 330 - 240 -	allowances and other Directors' benefits Discretionary fees in kind bonuses RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 480 4,660 - 180 2,259 - 180 1,017 - 180 1,017 - 180 1,033 - 180 1,033 - 165 1,485 - 165 1,563 - 165 1,563 - 330 - - 28 - - 330 - - 335 - - 240 - -	allowances and other Equity-settled share-based payments MB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 480 4,660 – 180 2,259 – 180 1,017 – 180 1,026 – 180 1,033 – 180 1,033 – 180 1,033 – 180 1,033 – 180 1,033 – 180 1,033 – 180 1,653 – 165 1,563 – 330 – – 330 – – 28 – – 330 – – 333 – – 240 – –	allowances and other benefitsEquity-settled share-based paymentsContribution stoemes contributionRMB'000RMB'000RMB'000RMB'0004804,660 2,2591802,2591801,0171801,26 1,033-11801,033-3015301651,485-141651,563-2033028330330335240

12 DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued)

During the years ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, no amount was paid or payable by the Group to the directors or any of the other five highest paid individuals set out in note 13 below as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

During the year ended March 31, 2014, Mr. Shen Jingwu, a non-executive director, waived director's fees of approximately RMB39,000.

13 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, five (2014: five) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed in note 12.

14 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2015 includes a loss of RMB136,699,000 (2014: a profit of RMB1,390,762,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

15 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended March 31, 2015 is based on the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of RMB132,197,000 for the year ended March 31, 2015 (2014: RMB694,704,000) and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year ended March 31, 2015, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares:

	For the year en	ded March 31,
	2015	2014
	′000	'000
Issued ordinary shares at April 1	7,953,842	7,953,842
Weighted average number of ordinary shares at March 31	7,953,842	7,953,842
Basic earnings per share (RMB cents)	1.66	8.73

15 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended March 31, 2015 is based on the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company of RMB132,197,000 for the year ended March 31, 2015 (2014: RMB694,704,000) and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year ended March 31, 2015 after adjustment for the effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted):

	For the year ende	ed March 31,
	2015	2014
	′000	'000
Issued ordinary shares at April 1	7,953,842	7,953,842
Effect of dilution -Written put option (note 30(b))	62,325	11,370
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) at March 31	8,016,167	7,965,212
Diluted earnings per share (RMB cents)	1.65	8.72

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group

	Land and Buildings RMB'000	Machinery RMB'000	Motor vehicles and others RMB'000	Leasehold improvements RMB'000	Construction in progress RMB'000	Total RMB'000
_						
Cost:	540 (1)	25.000	241 672	04.100	211 770	1 212 1 47
At March 31, 2013	549,616	25,888	241,672	84,192	311,779	1,213,147
Additions	4,943	2,160	47,049	28,604	169,376	252,132
Transfer	286,682	-	2,106	59,104	(347,892)	-
Movement of exchange rate Reclassification to	21,061	-	76	-	-	21,137
investment properties (note 19)	(136,509)	-	-	-	(35,038)	(171,547)
Disposals	(3,200)	(446)	(35,767)	(15,795)		(55,208)
At March 31, 2014	722,593	27,602	255,136	156,105	98,225	1,259,661
Additions	2,993	2,514	28,932	28,848	75,032	138,319
Transfer	57,213	-	18,297	65,341	(140,851)	-
Movement of exchange rate	(22,505)	-	(299)	-	-	(22,804)
Disposals	-	(710)	(31,553)	(22,883)	-	(55,146)
At March 31, 2015	760,294	29,406	270,513	227,411	32,406	1,320,030
Accumulated depreciation:						
At March 31, 2013	(24,174)	(10,283)	(121,354)	(44,688)	_	(200,499)
Depreciation charged for the year	(16,304)	(2,689)	(56,621)	(32,909)		(108,523
Movement of exchange rate	(287)	(_//	(5)	(,,,	_	(292)
Reclassification to			(-)			
investment properties (note 19)	3,188	_	_	_	_	3,188
Disposals	468	238	21,296	15,795	-	37,797
At March 31, 2014	(37,109)	(12,734)	(156,684)	(61,802)	-	(268,329)
Depreciation charged for the year	(30,103)	(2,745)	(49,637)	(52,563)	-	(135,048)
Movement of exchange rate	824	-	192	-	-	1,016
Disposals	-	371	21,827	22,883	-	45,081
At March 31, 2015	(66,388)	(15,108)	(184,302)	(91,482)		(357,280)
Net book value: At March 31, 2015	693,906	14,298	86,211	135,929	32,406	962,750

Except for freehold land and buildings with carrying amount of RMB175,112,000 (2014: RMB198,712,000) which were located in the United Kingdom, all other buildings were located in mainland China at March 31, 2015. The properties located in the United Kingdom were acquired by the Group in June 2011, and function as the Group's European flagship store as well as its headquarters in Europe.

16 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

As at March 31, 2015, no interest expense was capitalized as the borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition of qualifying assets are not significant.

The Company

	Motor vehicles and others RMB'000
Cost:	
At March 31, 2013	1,609
Additions	44
At March 31, 2014 and 2015	1,653
Accumulated depreciation:	
At March 31, 2013	(1,592)
Depreciation charge for the year	(31)
At March 31, 2014	(1,623)
Depreciation charge for the year	(26)
At March 31, 2015	(1,649)
Net book value:	
At March 31, 2015	4
At March 31, 2014	30

17 LEASE PREPAYMENTS

	The Group At March 31	,
	2015 RMB'000	2014 RMB'000
Cost:		
At April 1	35,770	35,770
Additions	8,343	-
Disposal	(1,541)	
At March 31	42,572	35,770
Accumulated amortization:		
At April 1	(3,399)	(2,658
Amortization charge for the year	(1,054)	(741
Disposal	145	_
At March 31	(4,308)	(3,399
Net book value:		
At March 31	38,264	32,371

Lease prepayments represent cost of land use rights in respect of land located in the PRC with a lease period of 50 years when granted.

18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL

The Group

	Goodwill RMB'000	Customer relationships RMB'000	Trademarks RMB'000	Total RMB′000
Cost:				
At March 31, 2013 and 2014	777,053	597,882	206,765	1,581,700
At March 31, 2015	777,053	597,882	206,765	1,581,700
Amortization and impairment losses:				
At March 31, 2013	(89,274)	(379,170)	(14,584)	(483,028)
Amortization charge for the year	-	(24,993)	(10,879)	(35,872)
Impairment losses	(55,000)	-	-	(55,000)
At March 31, 2014	(144,274)	(404,163)	(25,463)	(573,900)
Amortization charge for the year	-	(24,993)	(10,588)	(35,581)
Impairment losses	(98,000)	_	-	(98,000)
At March 31, 2015	(242,274)	(429,156)	(36,051)	(707,481)
Net book value:				
At March 31, 2015	534,779	168,726	170,714	874,219
At March 31, 2014	632,779	193,719	181,302	1,007,800

The amortization of customer relationships and trademarks charge for the year is included in "selling and distribution expenses" in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing for cash-generating unit containing goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to the Group's operating divisions. The aggregate carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each cash generating unit (CGU) is as follows:

	The Group At March 31,		
	2015	2014	
	RMB'000	RMB'000	
Menswear	171,467	228,467	
Ladieswear	363,312	404,312	
	534,779	632,779	

The recoverable amounts of Menswear CGU and Ladieswear CGU were estimated based on the value in use, determined by discounting the future cash flows to be generated from the continuing use of the CGUs. The value in use calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management for the purposes of impairment reviews covering a five-year period. Cash-flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using an estimated annual growth rate of 3%. The discount rate used is the CGU's specific weighted average cost of capital, adjusted for a risk premium to reflect the systematic risk of the specific CGU.

Based on the assessment, the carrying amount of Menswear and Ladieswear CGU was higher than their respective recoverable amount of RMB662,159,000 and RMB999,046,000, and impairment losses of RMB57,000,000 and RMB41,000,000 were recognized in profit or loss, respectively. The impairment losses were fully allocated to goodwill. The estimate of value in use of Menswear CGU and Ladieswear CGU was determined using a post-tax discount rate of 20% and 24%, respectively.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

	The Group At March 31,		
	2015	2014	
	RMB'000	RMB'000	
Cost:			
At April 1	228,540	35,312	
Additions	115	20,379	
Reclassification from property, plant and equipment (note 16)	-	171,547	
Effect of movement in exchange rates	(13,734)	1,302	
At March 31	214,921	228,540	
Accumulated depreciation:			
At April 1	(9,066)	(4,390	
Charge for the year	(7,988)	(1,333	
Reclassification from property, plant and equipment (note 16)	-	(3,188	
Effect of movement in exchange rates	455	(155	
At March 31	(16,599)	(9,066	
Net book value:			
At March 31	198,322	219,474	

Investment properties comprise land and buildings that are leased to third parties. As at March 31, 2015, freehold investment properties of RMB106,801,000 (2014: RMB121,275,000) represented land and buildings located in the United Kingdom and leasehold investment properties of RMB91,521,000 (2014: RMB98,199,000) represented buildings located in mainland China. The Group leases out investment properties under operating leases. The leases carry rentals determined based on the lease contract with third parties for a period of typically five to eight years.

As at March 31, 2015, the aggregate fair value of the investment properties located in the United Kingdom was approximately GBP14,266,000 (equivalent of RMB129,974,000) (2014: GBP13,332,000 (equivalent of RMB136,497,000)), which was based on the valuation performed by an independent professionally qualified valuer, on an open market, existing use basis. The aggregate fair value of the investment properties located in mainland China was approximately RMB118,630,000 (2014: RMB116,514,000), which was based on the valuation performed by an independent professionally qualified valuer, on an open market, existing use basis.

19 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

During the year ended March 31, 2015, rental income of RMB4,376,000 (2014: RMB3,337,000) was recognized in profit or loss.

The Group's total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

	The Group At March 31,		
	2015	2014	
	RMB'000	RMB'000	
Within 1 year	4,739	5,236	
After 1 year but within 5 years	12,402	19,125	
After 5 years	_	267	
	17,141	24,628	

20 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(a) The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognized in the consolidated balance sheets and the movements during the years are as follows:

	Write down of inventory RMB'000	Provision for impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts RMB'000	Customer relationships and Trademark RMB'000	Undistributed retained earnings of PRC subsidiaries RMB'000	Unrealized profits arising from intra-group transactions RMB'000	Tax losses RMB'000	Others RMB'000	Total RMB'000
At March 31, 2013	72,633	11,566	(107,797)	(68,311)	141,419	40,775	71,242	161,527
Credited/(charged) to profit or loss	22,465	8,606	15,021	_	20,616	82,060	(30,659)	118,109
Credited to other comprehensive income	-	-	-	-	-	-	3,181	3,181
Disposal of a subsidiary	-						(740)	(740)
At March 31, 2014	95,098	20,172	(92,776)	(68,311)	162,035	122,835	43,024	282,077
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss	(15,617)	(3,983)	8,771	-	(34,067)	98,853	(25,752)	28,205
Charged to other comprehensive income	-	-	-	-	-	-	(680)	(680)
At March 31, 2015	79,481	16,189	(84,005)	(68,311)	127,968	221,688	16,592	309,602

20 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

(a) (continued)

The EIT Law and its relevant regulations impose a withholding tax at 10%, unless reduced by a tax treaty or arrangement, for dividend distributions out of the PRC from earnings accumulated from January 1, 2008. Undistributed earnings generated prior to January 1, 2008 are exempted from such withholding tax. Deferred tax liabilities have been recognized for the retained earnings recorded in the books and accounts of the Group's PRC subsidiaries generated after January 1, 2008, which management estimates will be distributed outside of the PRC within the foreseeable future.

(b) Reconciliation to the consolidated balance sheet:

	For the year ended March 31,		
	2015	2014	
	RMB'000	RMB'000	
Net deferred tax assets	469,813	451,501	
Net deferred tax liabilities	(160,211)	(169,424)	
	309,602	282,077	

(c) Deferred tax assets and liabilities not recognized

Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) have not been recognized in respect of the following items:

		The Group At March 31,		
	2015	2014		
	RMB′000	RMB'000		
Accumulated tax losses of subsidiaries	384,814	329,127		
Retained earnings from PRC subsidiaries not expected to be distributed outside of				
the PRC in the foreseeable future	(4,043,399)	(3,677,331		

No deferred tax assets have been recognized in respect of the cumulative tax losses of certain subsidiaries of the Group as at March 31, 2015, as management consider that it is not probable that the entities concerned will generate sufficient future taxable profits against which the unused tax losses can be utilized. Under the PRC tax regulations, tax losses can be carried forward for five years after the year of loss.

Deferred tax liabilities in relation to withholding tax have not been recognized for the above retained earnings from PRC subsidiaries as the Company controls the timing and amounts of distribution and does not expect to incur such liabilities in the foreseeable future.

21 INVENTORIES

	-	The Group At March 31,		
	2015	2014		
	RMB'000	RMB'000		
Raw materials	174,394	157,183		
Work in progress	4,174	17,061		
Finished goods	1,730,350	1,868,471		
	1,908,918	2,042,715		

At March 31, 2015, inventories carried at net realizable value amounted to approximately RMB443,338,000 (2014: RMB309,258,000).

All of the inventories are expected to be recovered within one year.

22 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

		The Group At March 31,		npany :h 31,
	2015	2014	2015	2014
	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000
Trade receivables	1,317,696	1,500,462	-	-
Bills receivable	23,218	79,410	-	-
Less: allowance for doubtful debts	(73,729)	(111,613)	-	
Third party other receivables:	1,267,185	1,468,259	-	-
– VAT recoverable	238,049	288,320	-	-
– Deposits	181,031	282,033	-	48,043
– Advances to employees	7,808	7,485	-	-
- Others	99,636	52,921	3,522	2,398
	1,793,709	2,099,018	3,522	50,441

All of the trade, bills and other receivables are expected to be recovered within one year.

22 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(a) Ageing analysis

As of the balance sheet date, the ageing analysis of trade receivables and bills receivable (which are included in trade, bills and other receivables), based on the invoice date (or date of revenue recognition, if earlier) and net of impairment losses on bad and doubtful debts, is as follows:

	The Group At March 31,			mpany rch 31,
	2015	2014	2015	2014
	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000
Within credit terms	959,685	1,159,119	-	-
1 to 3 months past due	169,449	162,970	-	-
Over 3 months but less than				
6 months past due	90,655	124,348	-	_
Over 6 months but less than				
12 months past due	39,794	21,822	-	-
Over 1 year past due	7,602	-	-	-
	1,267,185	1,468,259	-	-

Trade receivables and bills receivable are generally due within 30 to 90 days from the date of billing. Further details on the Group's credit policy and exposure to credit and currency risk related to trade, bills and other receivables are disclosed in note 34.

22 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b) Impairment of trade receivables and bills receivable

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables and bills receivable are recorded using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off against trade receivables and bills receivable directly (see note 3(j)(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts during the year, including both specific and collective loss components, is as follows:

	The C	The Group For the year ended March 31,		The Company For the year ended March 31,	
	For the year er				
	2015	2014	2015	2014	
	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	
At April 1	111,613	134,622	-	-	
Reversal for impairment of					
bad and doubtful debts	(7,941)	(22,073)	-	-	
Uncollectible amounts written off	(29,943)	(936)	-	-	
At March 31	73,729	111,613	_	-	

At March 31, 2015, the Group's trade receivables and bills receivable of RMB74,769,000 (2014: RMB89,537,000) were individually determined to be impaired. The individually impaired receivables related to customers that were in financial difficulties and management assessed that only a portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered. Consequently, specific allowances for doubtful debts of RMB9,209,000 (2014: RMB11,415,000) were recognized.

22 TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

(c) Trade receivables and bills receivable that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade receivables and bills receivable that are neither individually nor collectively considered to be impaired are as follows:

	The Group		The Co	mpany
	For the year er	nded March 31,	For the year ended March 31,	
	2015	2014	2015	2014
	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000
Neither past due nor impaired	894,125	1,080,997	-	_
1 to 3 months past due	162,998	152,400	-	-
Over 3 months but less than				
6 months past due	89,101	123,266	-	-
Over 6 months but less than				
12 months past due	39,680	21,532	-	-
Over 1 year past due	7,602	-	-	_
	299,381	297,198		
	1,193,506	1,378,195	-	-

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number of independent customers that have a good track record with the Group. Based on past experience, management believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

23 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Other financial assets represent investments in short-term wealth management products issued by banks in the PRC, with guaranteed principals and fixed returns at 5.20% (2014: 5.85% to 6.50%) per annum.

24 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Available-for-sale financial assets represent investments in short-term wealth management products issued by banks in the PRC, with guaranteed principals and expected but not guaranteed returns, ranging from 2.27% to 6.30% (2014: 3.80% to 6.21%) per annum.

25 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

Bank deposits are pledged to banks as security for the following activities:

	The Group At March 31,		
	2015		
	RMB'000	RMB'000	
Standby letters of credit	463,420	300,000	
Bank borrowings (note 28)	250,000	140,000	
Bills payable and letter of credit facilities	20,043	28,933	
	733,463	468,933	

The pledged bank deposits will be released upon the settlement of the relevant bank borrowings, bills payable and letters of credit facilities.

26 TIME DEPOSITS WITH MATURITY OVER 3 MONTHS

The Group's time deposits of RMB268,900,000 (2014: RMB147,400,000) as at March 31, 2015 were deposited in banks for a period of over three months.

27 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

		iroup rch 31,	The Company At March 31,		
	2015	2014	2015	2014	
	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	
Cash at bank and on hand	3,473,143	2,734,329	135,743	130,603	
Less: pledged bank deposits	(733,463)	(468,933)	-	-	
time deposits with maturity over 3 months	(268,900)	(147,400)	-	-	
Cash and cash equivalents	2,470,780	2,117,996	135,743	130,603	

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

27 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

Cash at bank and on hand are denominated in:

	The C At Ma	Group rch 31,	The Company At March 31,		
	2015	2014	2015	2014	
	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	
– RMB	3,284,788	2,503,231	_	-	
– USD	49,623	105,507	20,681	80,346	
– HKD	133,381	121,714	115,062	50,257	
– GBP	5,350	3,873	_	_	
– EUR	1	4	-	-	
	3,473,143	2,734,329	135,743	130,603	

The Group's cash and bank balances denominated in RMB are deposited with banks in the PRC. The conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

28 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

At March 31, 2015, the interest-bearing borrowings were repayable as follows:

	The G At Mai	Group rch 31,	The Company At March 31,		
	2015	2015 2014 2015			
	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	
Within 1 year or on demand	2,544,435	1,048,638	2,025,863	771,978	
After 1 year but within 2 years	993,194	1,219,103	993,194	1,069,103	
After 2 years but within 5 years	-	991,411	-	991,411	
	993,194	2,210,514	993,194	2,060,514	
	3,537,629	3,259,152	3,019,057	2,832,492	

28 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS (continued)

At March 31, 2015, the interest-bearing borrowings were secured as follows:

		iroup rch 31,	The Company At March 31,		
	2015	2014	2015	2014	
	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	
Bank loans					
– Secured	1,473,172	1,026,379	954,600	599,719	
– Unsecured	2,064,457	2,232,773	2,064,457	2,232,773	
	3,537,629	3,259,152	3,019,057	2,832,492	

Bank borrowings of RMB981,756,000 as at March 31, 2015 (2014: RMB749,719,000) were secured by standby letters of credit.

Bank borrowings of RMB491,416,000 as at March 31, 2015 (2014: 276,660,000) were secured by pledged bank deposits of RMB250,000,000 (2014: 140,000,000) (note 25).

Unsecured long-term bank loans of RMB2,064,457,000 are subject to the fulfillment of covenants relating to certain of the Group's balance sheet ratios, as are commonly found in lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants the drawn down facilities would become payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants. None of the covenants relating to drawn down facilities has been breached. Further details of the Group's management of liquidity risk are set out in note 34(b).

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

	The G At Mar	-	The Company At March 31,		
	2015 2014		2015	2014	
	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	
Trade payables	608,848	690,154	-	-	
Other payables and accrued expenses					
– Deposits from customers	182,195	282,833	-	-	
- Construction payables	14,496	61,670	-	-	
- Accrued commissions	-	45,134	-	-	
- Accrued advertising expenses	3,582	9,970	-	-	
– Accrued payroll and welfare	152,130	145,292	154	1,556	
– Cash-settled written put option (note 30(b))	93,041	-	-	-	
– VAT payable	45,699	117,298	-	-	
– Dividends payable	5,000	5,000	-	-	
– Others	156,228	201,407	10,306	3,002	
	1,261,219	1,558,758	10,460	4,558	

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled within one year.

As of the balance sheet date, the ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

		Group rch 31,	The Company At March 31,		
	2015	2014	2015	2014	
	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	
Within 1 month	191,742	316,007	-	-	
1 to 3 months	417,106	374,147	-	-	
	608,848	690,154	-	_	

30 NON-CURRENT OTHER PAYABLES

	The Group At March 31,	
	2015	2014
	RMB'000	
Contingent consideration payable	-	659
Cash-settled written put option	-	181,032
	-	181,691

On November 4, 2011, the Group obtained control of Talent Shine Limited and Sunny Bright Global Investments Limited (collectively known as "Ladieswear") by acquiring 70% of the shares and voting interests of the Ladieswear business. Pursuant to the relevant sales and purchase agreement (the "SPA"), the total consideration payable comprised cash consideration of RMB148 million, issuance of 235,000,000 new ordinary shares, and contingent consideration, the amount of which depended on Ladieswear's adjusted net profit (as defined in the SPA), and shall be payable within three years from March 31, 2012 to March 31, 2015. In addition, the Group granted a written put option to Talent Shine International Limited, the non-controlling equity shareholder of Ladieswear, giving it the right to sell its entire interest in Ladieswear after March 31, 2015 at a consideration which comprises cash and a variable number of shares. The consideration for exercising the put option depends on Ladieswear's adjusted net profit for the year ended March 31, 2015 and in total shall not exceed RMB900,000,000. The put option remains outstanding and not yet exercised by Talent Shine International Limited.

(a) Contingent consideration payable

At March 31, 2015, the fair value of the contingent consideration payable was nil (2014: RMB659,000 recorded as non-current payable).

(b) Written put option to non-controlling equity shareholder

As at March 31, 2015, the Group recorded the present value of the redemption price of the cash settled portion of the written put option of RMB93,041,000 as a current payable (2014:RMB181,032,000 recorded as a non-current payable) with the corresponding increase in other reserve.

As at March 31, 2015, the fair value of the share settled portion of the written put option amounted to RMB1,435,000 (2014:RMB12,050,000), which was recorded as derivative financial liabilities with fair value change of RMB10,615,000 (note 10) being recognized in profit or loss.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES

	The Company At March 31,		
	2015	2014	
	RMB'000	RMB'000	
Investment, at cost	_	-	
Advances to subsidiaries	1,854,062	1,879,172	
Investment in a trust for the Share Award Scheme (note 31(b))	72,269	121,228	
Equity-settled share-based payments	76,066	76,066	
	2,002,397	2,076,466	

Advances to subsidiaries included in the investment in subsidiaries are unsecured, interest free and expected to be repayable beyond one year.

(a) Subsidiaries

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

		Place of incorporation/	Proportion of ownership interest Group's				
	Name of company	establishment and business	issued and paid up capital	effective interest	Held by the company	Held by a subsidiary	Principal activity
1)	Enterprises established outside the PRC						
	Bosideng International Fashion Ltd. 波司登國際服飾有限公司	British Virgin Islands ("BVI")	US\$1	100%	100%	-	Investment holding
	Talent Shine Limited 迪暉有限公司	Hong Kong	10,000 Shares	70%	-	70%	Sourcing and distribution of non-down apparels
	Long Pacific (H.K.) Ltd. 長隆 (香港) 有限公司	Hong Kong	10,000 Shares	100%	-	100%	Investment holding
	Ying Fai International Investment Limited 盈輝國際投資有限公司	BVI	10,000 shares of US\$1 each	100%	-	100%	Investment holding

(a) Subsidiaries (continued)

		Place of	lace of Proportion of ownershi			hip interest		
	Name of company	incorporation/ establishment and business	Particulars of issued and paid up capital	Group's effective interest	Held by the company	Held by a subsidiary	Principal activity	
1)	Enterprises established outside the PRC (o	continued)						
	Bosideng UK Limited 波司登 (英國) 有限公司	United Kingdom	GBP1	100%	-	100%	Sourcing and distribution of non-down apparels	
	Bosideng Retail Limited 波司登零售有限公司	United Kingdom	GBP1	100%	-	100%	Distribution of non-down apparels	
	Sunny Bright Global Investments Limited 朗輝環球投資有限公司	BVI	50,000 shares of US\$1 each	70%	-	70%	Sourcing and distribution of non-down apparels	
	Jessie International Holdings Limited 杰西國際控股有限公司	BVI	US\$1	100%	-	100%	Investment holding	
2)	Wholly foreign owned enterprises establis	shed in the PRC						
	Bosideng International Fashion (China) Limited 波司登國際服飾 (中國) 有限公司	PRC	US\$138,000,000	100%	-	100%	Sourcing and distribution of down apparels	
	Jiangsu Bosideng Garment Development Co., Ltd. 江蘇波司登服裝發展有限公司	PRC	US\$35,000,000	100%	-	100%	Sourcing and distribution of non-down apparels	
	Talent Shine Import&Export (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. 迪輝達進出口 (深圳) 有限公司	PRC	RMB8,300,000	70%	-	100%	Distribution of non-down apparels	
	Shanghai Bosideng Trade Development Co. Ltd. 上海波司登商貿發展有限公司	PRC	RMB10,000,000	100%	-	100%	Distribution of down apparels	

(a) Subsidiaries (continued)

		Place of				ip interest	
	Name of company	incorporation/ establishment and business	Particulars of issued and paid up capital	Group's effective interest	Held by the company	Held by a subsidiary	Principal activity
3)	Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterpr	ises established in tl	he PRC				
	Bingjie Fashion Limited 冰潔服飾有限公司	PRC	US\$68,000,000	100%	-	100%	Sourcing and distribution of down apparels
	Bosideng Down Wear Limited 波司登羽絨服裝有限公司	PRC	US\$80,000,000	100%	-	100%	Sourcing and distribution of down apparels
	Kangbo Fashion Limited 康博服飾有限公司	PRC	US\$85,000,000	100%	-	100%	Sourcing and distribution of down apparels
	Shanghai Shuangyu Fashion Limited 上海雙羽服飾有限公司	PRC	US\$68,000,000	100%	-	100%	Sourcing and distribution of down apparels
4)	Domestic companies established in the PRO	:					
	Changshu Bosideng Advertising Co., Ltd. 常熟市波司登廣告有限責任公司	PRC	RMB10,000,000	100%	-	100%	Advertisement agency
	Shanghai Kangbo International Trading Co., Ltd. 上海康波國際貿易有限公司	PRC	RMB6,000,000	100%	-	100%	Import and export activities
	Shenzhen Jessie Fashion Co., Ltd. 深圳市杰西服裝有限責任公司	PRC	RMB16,500,000	70%	-	100%	Sourcing and distribution of non-down apparels
	Changshu Bosideng Import and Export Co., Ltd. 常熟市波司登進出口有限公司	PRC	RMB5,000,000	100%	-	100%	Sourcing and distribution of OEM products
	Jiangsu Bosideng Marketing Co., Ltd. 江蘇波司登營銷有限公司	PRC	RMB100,000,000	100%	-	100%	Distribution of down apparels

(a) Subsidiaries (continued)

		Place of Proportion of ownership					
	Name of company	incorporation/ establishment and business	Particulars of issued and paid up capital	Group's effective interest	Held by the company	Held by a subsidiary	Principal activity
4)	Domestic companies established in the Pl	RC (continued)					
	Shanghai Bosideng Clothing Trading Co., Ltd. 上海波司登服飾貿易有限公司	PRC	RMB50,000,000	100%	-	100%	Distribution of down apparels
	Shanghai Xugao Fashion Co., Ltd. 上海旭高時裝有限公司	PRC	RMB200,200,000	51%	-	51%	Distribution of non-down apparels
	Shanghai Bosideng Information Technology Co., Ltd. 上海波司登信息科技有限公司	PRC	RMB38,000,000	100%	-	100%	Network consulting and e-business of down an non-down apparels
	Xuezhongfei Enterprise Co., Ltd. 雪中飛寶業有限公司	PRC	RMB50,000,000	100%	-	100%	Distribution of down apparels
	Shanghai Bosideng Electronic Commerce Co., Ltd. 上海波司登電子商務有限公司	PRC	RMB28,000,000	100%	-	100%	E-commerce of down and non-down apparels
	Jiangsu Bosideng Supply Chains Management Co., Ltd. 江蘇波司登供應鏈管理有限公司	PRC	RMB5,000,000	100%	-	100%	Logistics of down and non-down apparels

i) The English translation of the names of the companies registered in the PRC above is for reference only. The official names of these companies are in Chinese.

As at March 31, 2015 and 2014, none of the Group's subsidiaries have non-controlling interests that are material to the Group's consolidated financial statements.

(b) A trust for the Share Award Scheme (the "Trust")

On September 23, 2011, the Company adopted a share award scheme (the "Share Award Scheme"), which is not subject to the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, to recognize and reward the contribution of certain eligible employees to the growth and development of the Group through an award of the Company's shares. The Share Award Scheme will remain in force for a period commencing on September 23, 2011 and ending on March 31, 2018.

The Company has appointed a trustee for administration of the Share Award Scheme (the "Trustee"). The principal activity of the Trustee is administrating and holding the Company's shares for the Share Award Scheme for the benefit of the Company's eligible employees. Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, the Company's shares will be purchased by the Trustee in the market out of cash contributed by the Company and held in the Trust for relevant employees until such shares are vested in the relevant beneficiary in accordance with the provisions of the Share Award Scheme at no cost. The total number of the Company's shares held by the Trustee under the Share Award Scheme will not exceed 1.5% of the total issued shares of the Company at any time.

As the Company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of the Trust and can derive benefits from the contributions of the employees who have been awarded the shares of the Company (the "Awarded Shares") through their continued employment with the Group, the Group is required to consolidate the Trust.

As at March 31, 2015, the Company had contributed RMB72,269,000 (2014: RMB121,228,000) to the Trust and the amount was recorded as "Investment in subsidiaries" in the Company's balance sheet.

As at March 31, 2015, the Trustee had purchased 53,508,000 shares (2014: 53,508,000 shares) of the Company at a total cost (including related transaction costs) of RMB71,778,000 (2014: RMB71,778,000). No shares had been awarded to eligible employees as of March 31, 2015 under the Share Award Scheme.

32 INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES

The following list contains the particulars of the associates, all of which are unlisted corporate entities whose quoted market price is not available:

Proportion of ownership interest							
Name of associate	Form of business structure	Place of incorporation and business	Particulars of issued and paid up capital	Group's effective interest	Held by the company	Held by a subsidiary	Principal activity
Buoubuou International Holdings Limited 邦寶國際控股有限公司	Incorporated	BVI	600,000,000 ordinary shares of US\$0.0001 each	21%	-	30%	Sourcing and distribution of non-down apparels
New Prosperous Trading Development Ltd. 新富貿易發展有限公司	Incorporated	BVI	50,000 ordinary shares of US\$1 each	21%	-	30%	Sourcing and distribution of non-down apparels
Union Techwell Development Ltd. 聯得發展有限公司	Incorporated	BVI	50,000 ordinary shares of US\$1 each	21%	-	30%	Sourcing and distribution of non-down apparels

- Note 1: These companies and their subsidiaries are principally engaged in the research, design and development, raw materials procurement, outsourced manufacturing, marketing and distribution of "BUOU BUOU" branded ladieswear apparels in the PRC market.
- Note 2: The interest in New Prosperous Trading Development Ltd. and Union Techwell Development Ltd. held by Talent Shine Limited was transferred to Buoubuou International Holdings Limited on June 18, 2014.

All of the above associates are accounted for using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements.

As at March 31, 2015 and 2014, none of the Group's associates are material to the Group's consolidated financial statements.

Aggregate information of associates that are not individually material:

	For the year en	For the year ended March 31,		
	2015	2014		
	RMB'000	RMB'000		
Aggregate carrying amount of individually immaterial associates in the consolidated financial statements Aggregate amounts of the Group's share of those associates'	222,456	167,585		
Profit from continuing operations	24,871	17,585		

33 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(a) Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of each component of the Group's consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Details of the changes in the Company's individual components of equity between the beginning and the end of the year are set out below:

The Company

	Share capital RMB'000 (note 33(c))	Share premium RMB'000 (note 33(e))	Capital reserves RMB'000 (note 33(d))	Translation reserves RMB'000 (note 33(d))	Retained earnings RMB'000	Total RMB'000
	(22)	705 717	76.066	(702.252)	125 144	204 207
Balance at March 31, 2013	622	785,717	76,066	(793,252)	135,144	204,297
Changes in equity for 2013:					1 200 762	1 200 762
Profit for the year	-	-	-	-	1,390,762	1,390,762
Foreign currency translation						
differences -foreign operations	-	-	-	(125)	-	(125)
Dividends (note 33(b))	-	(648,153)		_	-	(648,153)
Balance at March 31, 2014	622	137,564	76,066	(793,377)	1,525,906	946,781
Changes in equity for 2014:						
Loss for the year	-	-	-	-	(136,699)	(136,699)
Foreign currency translation						
differences -foreign operations	-	-	-	(1,553)	-	(1,553)
Dividends (note 33(b))	-	(137,564)	-	-	(65,647)	(203,211)
Balance at March 31, 2015	622	_	76,066	(794,930)	1,323,560	605,318

(b) Dividends

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the year:

	For the year ended March 31,		
	2015	2014	
	RMB'000	RMB'000	
Interim dividend declared and paid of RMB1.0 cent per ordinary share (2014: interim dividend of RMB2.9 cents per ordinary share)	76,080	234,410	
Final dividend proposed after balance sheet date of			
RMB0.8 cent per ordinary share			
(2014: RMB1.6 cents per ordinary share)	63,112	127,131	
	139,192	361,541	

The final dividends proposed after the balance sheet date have not been recognized as a liability at the balance sheet date.

(ii) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the previous financial year, approved and paid during the year:

	For the year ended March 31,		
	2015	2014	
	RMB'000	RMB'000	
Final dividend in respect of the previous financial year,			
approved and paid during the year, of RMB1.6 cents per			
ordinary share (2014: final dividend of RMB5.2 cents per			
ordinary share)	127,131	413,743	

(c) Share capital

Movements in the authorized and issued and fully paid share capital of the Company during the years are as follows:

	2015		2014			
	No. of shares		No. of shares			
	(′000)	RMB'000	(′000)	RMB'000		
Authorized:						
Ordinary shares	20,000,000	1,556	20,000,000	1,556		
USD equivalent ('000)		200		200		
Ordinary shares, issued and						
fully paid:						
At April 1 and March 31	8,007,350	622	8,007,350	622		

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company's residual assets.

Authorized share capital

The Company was incorporated on July 10, 2006 with an authorized share capital of US\$100, divided into 100 shares of par value of US\$1.00 each. Through a series of changes in share capital, the authorized share capital is US\$200,000 divided into 20,000,000,000 ordinary shares of US\$0.00001 each after the completion of the Hong Kong Public Offering and the International Placing.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

(i) Capital reserves

The capital reserves at March 31, 2015 and 2014 represent the value of employee services in respect of shares granted to employees and consultants.

(ii) Statutory reserves

Statutory reserves were established in accordance with the relevant PRC rules and regulations and the articles of association of the entities now comprising the Group which are incorporated in the PRC. Transfers to the reserves were approved by the respective boards of directors.

(iii) Foreign currency translation reserves

The foreign currency translation reserves comprise all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of the operations outside the PRC which are dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies as set out in note 3(b).

(iv) Fair value reserves

The fair value reserves comprise the cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets until the investments are derecognized or impaired.

(e) Distributable reserves

Under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands, all reserves (including share premium and retained earnings) of the Company may be applied for payment of distributions or dividends to equity shareholders provided that immediately following the date on which the distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

At March 31, 2015, distributable reserves (including share premium and retained earnings) of the Company amounted to RMB604,696,000 (2014: RMB946,159,000).

(f) Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of an adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as total debt (which includes interest-bearing loans and borrowings, plus unaccrued proposed dividends, less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity and redeemable preference shares, other than amounts recognized in equity relating to cash flow hedges, less unaccrued proposed dividends.

During the year ended March 31, 2015, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged from 2013, was to maintain the adjusted net debt-to-capital ratio at the lower end of the range 10% to 30%. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

(f) Capital management (continued)

The adjusted net debt-to-equity ratio as at March 31, 2015 and 2014 was as follows:

		The Gr	oup	The Company		
	Note	2015	2014	2015	2014	
		RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	
Current liabilities:						
Interest-bearing borrowings	28	2,544,435	1,048,638	2,025,863	771,978	
Non-current liabilities:						
Interest-bearing borrowings	28	993,194	2,210,514	993,194	2,060,514	
Total debt		3,537,629	3,259,152	3,019,057	2,832,492	
Add: Proposed dividends	33(b)	62,690	126,381	63,112	127,231	
Less: Cash and cash equivalents	27	(2,470,780)	(2,117,996)	(135,743)	(130,603	
		1 100 500	1 267 527	2.046.426	2 0 2 0 1 2 0	
Adjusted net debt		1,129,539	1,267,537	2,946,426	2,829,120	
Total equity		7,185,216	7,154,889	605,318	946,781	
Less: Proposed dividends	33(b)	(62,690)	(126,381)	(63,112)	(127,231	
Adjusted capital		7,122,526	7,028,508	542,206	819,550	
Adjusted net debt – to-capital rati	0	16%	18%	543%	3459	

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in the normal course of the Group's business. The Group is also exposed to business risks primarily arising from the weather conditions and competition.

The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk management policies and practices used by the Group to manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk

(i) Trade and other receivables

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other receivables and receivables due from related parties. Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These receivables are in general due within 30 to 90 days from the date of billing. Debtors with overdue balances are requested to settle all outstanding balances before any further credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of the industry and country in which customers operate also has an influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk.

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of any collateral is represented by the carrying amount of trade and other receivables and receivables due from related parties in the balance sheet after deducting any impairment allowance. The Group does not provide any other guarantees which would expose the Group to credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's exposure to credit risk arising from trade and other receivables are set out in note 22.

(ii) Deposits with banks

The Group mitigates its exposure to credit risk by placing deposits with financial institutions with established credit ratings. Given the credit ratings of the banks, management does not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets and other financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets and other financial assets are arranged with financial institutions with established credit ratings. Pursuant to the agreements with the financial institutions, there is limited credit risk on the principal amounts, as majority of these are guaranteed by the financial institutions.

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and readily realizable marketable securities and adequate committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group's and the Company's financial liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the balance sheet date) and the earliest date the Group and the Company can be required to pay:

	2015					2014						
		Con	tractual undi	iscounted cas	h flow			Contractual undiscounted cash flow				
			More than						More than			
	Within 1	More than	2 years			Balance	Within 1	More than	2 years			Balance
	year	1 year but	but			sheet	year	1 year	but			sheet
	or on	less than	less than	More than		carrying	or on	less than	less than	More than		carrying
	demand	2 years	5 years	5 years	Total	amount	demand	2 years	5 years	5 years	Total	amount
	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000
The Group												
Interest-bearing borrowings	2,595,777	1,028,065	-	-	3,623,842	3,537,629	1,107,962	1,275,931	1,029,468	-	3,413,361	3,259,152
Trade and other payables	1,261,219	-	-	-	1,261,219	1,261,219	1,558,758	-	-	-	1,558,758	1,558,758
Payables due to related												
parties	1,484	-	-	-	1,484	1,484	2,806	-	-	-	2,806	2,806
Non-current other payables	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	191,097	-	-	191,097	181,691
	3,858,480	1,028,065	-	-	4,886,545	4,800,332	2,669,526	1,467,028	1,029,468	-	5,166,022	5,002,407
The Component												
The Company	2 005 774	1 030 0/5			2 112 020	2 010 057	007.450	1 1 25 (11	1 0 20 4 6 0		2 002 520	2 0 2 2 4 0 2
Interest-bearing borrowings	2,085,774	1,028,065	-	-	3,113,839	3,019,057	827,450	1,125,611	1,029,468	-	2,982,529	2,832,492
Trade and other payables	10,460	-	-	-	10,460	10,460	4,558	-	-	-	4,558	4,558
	2,096,234	1,028,065		-	3,124,299	3,029,517	832,008	1,125,611	1,029,468		2,987,087	2,837,050
	2,070,234	1,020,003	-	-	3,124,299	5,027,517	032,000	1,123,011	1,027,400	_	2,707,007	2,037,030

As shown in the above analysis, bank loans of the Group and the Company amounting to RMB2,595,777,000 and RMB2,085,774,000 respectively were due to be repaid during the year ending March 31, 2016. The short-term liquidity risk inherent in this contractual maturity date is expected to be addressed after the balance sheet date by obtaining new loan financing from existing lenders and issuance of new shares. Subsequent to the balance sheet date, as explained in note 37(b) and 37(c), the Company has made arrangements to issue new shares with net proceeds expected of approximately RMB1,223,759,000. The Company has already obtained on June 22, 2015 a new uncommitted term loan facility of up to RMB268,107,000 and is in discussions with lenders in respect of the rollover of the existing loan facilities.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from interest-bearing borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group's interest rate profile as monitored by management is set out in (i) below:

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the Group's and the Company's interest-bearing borrowings at the balance sheet date:

2015	5	2014				
Effective		Effective				
Interest rate	RMB'000	Interest rate	RMB'000			
2.10%	(3,537,629)	2.11%	(3,259,152)			
	(3,537,629)		(3,259,152)			
2.20%	(3,019,057)	2.23%	(2,832,492)			
	(3,019,057)		(2,832,492)			
	Effective Interest rate 2.10%	Interest rate RMB'000 2.10% (3,537,629) (3,537,629) (3,537,629) 2.20% (3,019,057)	Effective Interest rate Effective Interest rate 2.10% (3,537,629) 2.11% (3,537,629) 2.20% (3,019,057) 2.23%			

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

At March 31, 2015, it is estimated that a general increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held constant, would have decreased/increased the Group's profit after tax and retained earnings for the year by approximately RMB35,376,000 (2014: decreased/increased by approximately RMB32,592,000). Other components of equity would not have been affected by the changes in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the instantaneous change in the Group's profit after tax (and retained earnings) that would arise assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at the balance sheet date. In respect of the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk arising from floating rate non-derivative instruments held by the Group at the balance sheet date, the impact on the Group's profit after tax (and retained earnings) is estimated as an annualised impact on interest expense or income of such a change in interest rates. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2014.

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Currency risk

RMB is not freely convertible into foreign currencies. All foreign exchange transactions involving RMB have to take place through the People's Bank of China or other institutions authorized to buy and sell foreign exchange. The exchange rates adopted for the foreign exchange transactions are the rates of exchange quoted by the People's Bank of China that are determined largely by supply and demand. The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through bank deposits and interest-bearing borrowings that are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the operations to which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily United States Dollars and Hong Kong Dollars.

(i) Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group's and the Company's major exposures at the balance sheet date to currency risk arising from recognized assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the entity to which they relate. For presentation purposes, the amounts of the exposure are shown in Renminbi, translated using the spot rate at the year end date. Differences resulting from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations into the Group's presentation currency are excluded.

	Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in Renminbi)							
	201	5	2014	ŀ				
	United States	Hong Kong	United States	Hong Kong				
	Dollars	Dollars	Dollars	Dollars				
	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000				
Bank deposits	11,996	188,098	2,086	178,166				
Trade receivables	6,734	-	53,800	-				
Prepayments for materials and								
service suppliers	49,302	-	77,535	-				
Trade payables	(4,034)	-	(1,470)	-				
Interest-bearing borrowings	-	(889,623)	-	(602,067)				
	63,998	(701,525)	131,951	(423,901)				

The Group

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(i) Exposure to currency risk (continued) The Company

	Exposure to foreign	Exposure to foreign currencies (expressed in Renminbi)		
	2015	2014		
	Hong Kong	Hong Kong		
	Dollars	Dollars		
	RMB′000	RMB'000		
Bank deposits	115,065	50,257		
Interest-bearing borrowings	(739,623)	(452,067		
	(624,558)	(401,810		

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in the Group's profit after tax (and retained earnings) and other components of consolidated equity that would arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group has significant exposure at the balance sheet date had changed at that date, assuming all other risk variables remained constant.

		2015			2014	
	Increase/	Effect on		Increase/	Effect on	
	(decrease)	profit after	Effect	(decrease)	profit after	Effect
	in foreign	tax and	on other	in foreign	tax and	on other
	exchange	retained	components	exchange	retained	components
	rate	earnings	of equity	rate	earnings	of equity
	%	RMB'000	RMB'000	%	RMB'000	RMB'000
Hong Kong dollars	10%	(70,149)	-	10%	(42,386)	-
United States dollars	10%	4,800	-	10%	9,896	_

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(d) Currency risk (continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis (continued)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on each of the Group entities' profit after tax and equity measured in the respective functional currencies, translated into Renminbi at the exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet date for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those financial instruments held by the Group which expose the Group to foreign currency risk at the balance sheet date, including inter-company payables and receivables within the Group which are denominated in a currency other than the functional currencies of the lender or the borrower. The analysis excludes differences that would result from the translation of the financial statements of foreign operations into the Group's presentation currency. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2014.

(e) Business risk

The Group's primary business is research, design and development, raw materials procurement, outsourced manufacturing, marketing and distribution of branded down apparel products, which experiences seasonal fluctuations. As such, the sales volumes and revenue in the second half of the financial year are normally substantially higher than those during the first half of the financial year. The Group's financial results are influenced by the weather conditions during the year and the rapidity with which designs are copied by competitors and reproduced at lower prices, as well as by the Group's ability to develop new designs that capture market demand, maintain an effective distribution network, manufacture sufficient quantities to meet cyclical sales, and manage an optimal level of inventories. Based on these factors, the Group may experience significant fluctuations in its future financial results.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(f) Fair value measurement

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group's financial instruments measured at the balance sheet date on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement is classified is determined with reference to the observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date;
- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are not available;
- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant unobservable inputs.

The Group

		Fair value measurements as at		
		March 31, 2015 categorized into		
		Significant		
		other	Significant	
	Fair value at	observable	unobservable	
	March 31, 2015	inputs (Level 2)	inputs (Level 3)	
	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	
Recurring fair value measurements				
Financial assets:				
Available-for-sale financial assets (note 24)	2,027,181	2,027,181	-	
Financial liabilities:				
Derivative financial liabilities	1,435	-	1,435	
Contingent consideration payable	-	-	-	

34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(f) Fair value measurement (continued)

(i) Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (continued) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The Group

		Fair value measurements as at	
		March 31, 2014 categorized into	
		Significant	
		other	Significant
	Fair value at	observable	unobservable
	March 31, 2014	inputs (Level 2)	inputs (Level 3)
	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000
Recurring fair value measurements			
Financial assets:			
Available-for-sale financial assets	2,082,930	2,082,930	-
Financial liabilities:			
Derivative financial liabilities	12,050	-	12,050
Contingent consideration payable	659	-	659

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of available-for-sale financial assets in Level 2 is determined by reference to quoted prices of instruments similar to the assets being valued, adjusted for factors unique to the assets being valued.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurement

The fair value of derivative financial liabilities is determined by using appropriate valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs.

(ii) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities carried at other than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial instruments carried at cost or amortized cost are not materially different from their fair values as at March 31, 2015 and 2014.

35 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a) Capital commitments

Capital commitments of the Group in respect of plant, property and equipment outstanding at March 31, 2015 not provided for in the consolidated financial statements were as follows:

		The Group At March 31,	
	2015	2014	
	RMB′000	RMB'000	
Contracted for Authorized but not contracted for	50,272	106,569 3,400	
	50,272	109,969	

The Company had no capital commitments outstanding at March 31, 2015 and 2014.

(b) Operating lease commitments

Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable as follows:

	The Group At March 31,			The Company At March 31,	
	2015	2014	2015	2014	
	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	
Within 1 year	100,385	159,617	101	404	
After 1 year but within 5 years	74,011	133,635	-	101	
Over 5 years	3,595	6,173	-	-	
	177,991	299,425	101	505	

The Group leases a number of warehouses, factory facilities and office premises under operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial period of between one and six years, with an option to renew the lease after that date. Lease payments are usually increased annually to reflect market rentals. None of the leases includes contingent rentals. In addition to the above, the Group operates retail outlets under concessionaire arrangements. The concessionaire fees, calculated based on a percentage of revenue for the year, were RMB698,860,000 for the year ended March 31, 2015 (2014: RMB795,003,000).

(c) Contingent liabilities

As at March 31, 2015, the Group and the Company did not have any significant contingent liabilities.

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, transactions with the following parties are considered as related party transactions.

Name of party

Bosideng Corporation 波司登股份有限公司

Shandong Kangbo Industry Co., Ltd. ("Shandong Kangbo") 山東康博實業有限公司(「山東康博」)

Jiangsu Suyong International Trade Co., Ltd. ("Jiangsu Suyong") 江蘇蘇甬國際貿易有限公司(「江蘇蘇甬」)

Jiangsu Kangxin Garment Co., Ltd. ("Jiangsu Kangxin") 江蘇康欣制衣有限公司(「江蘇康欣」)

Zhongke Bosideng Nanotech Garment (Suzhou) Co., Ltd. ("Zhongke Bosideng") 中科波司登納米服飾 (蘇州) 有限公司 (「中科波司登」)

Relationship

Effectively controlled by Mr. Gao Dekang and his family ("the Gao Family"), the controlling equity shareholders of the Group

Effectively controlled by the Gao Family, the controlling equity shareholders of the Group

Effectively controlled by the Gao Family, the controlling equity shareholders of the Group

Effectively controlled by the Gao Family, the controlling equity shareholders of the Group

Effectively controlled by the Gao Family, the controlling equity shareholders of the Group

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Transactions with fellow subsidiaries

	The Group The Company		
For the year ended March 31,		For the year ended March 31,	
2015	2014	2015	2014
RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000
85	449	_	
-	2,661	_	
_	10	_	-
85	3,120		
85	5,120		
13,856	6,934	-	
2,135	2,165	-	
2,400	5,448	-	-
18,391	14,547	_	
689,638	477,551	-	
-	583	_	
4,354	4,605	-	
603 002	182 730		
093,992	-102,739		
8,828	12,828	-	
0 0 0 0	12 020		
	- 4,354 693,992	 - 583 4,354 4,605 693,992 482,739 482,828 12,828 12,828 	- 583 - 4,354 4,605 - 693,992 482,739 - 8,828 12,828 -

Key management personnel remuneration is disclosed in note 12.

36 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a) Transactions with fellow subsidiaries (continued)

(i) The fees were mainly paid to a hotel owned by Bosideng Corporation, which provided hotel accommodation services to the Group, and property management fee paid to a property management company owned by Bosideng Corporation.

The related party transactions above constitute connected transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules are provided in the section Continuing Connected Transactions of the Report of the directors.

(b) Balances with related parties

	The Group At March 31,		The Company At March 31,	
	2015	2014	2015	2014
	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000	RMB'000
Other receivables due from:				
Bosideng Corporation	157,036	144,045	_	_
Jiangsu Kangxin	_	95	_	_
Jiangsu Suyong	121	121	-	_
	157,157	144,261		
Total receivables due from				
related parties	157,157	144,261	_	_
Trade payables due to:				
Shandong Kangbo	1,038	1,397	-	-
Zhongke Bosideng	420	875	-	-
Jiangsu Kangxin	26	-	-	
	1,484	2,272	_	-
Other payables due to:				
Shandong Kangbo		534		
Total payables due to related parties	1,484	2,806	_	_

37 NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

- (a) Subsequent to March 31, 2015, the Company proposed a final dividend of RMB63,112,000, representing RMB0.8 cent per ordinary share to the equity shareholders of the Company.
- (b) On April 24, 2015, the Company has entered into a subscription agreement (the "Subscription Agreement") with New Surplus International Investment Limited ("the Subscriber") (a company indirectly wholly owned by Mr. Gao Dekang and to be invested by IC International Company Limited (a company jointly set up by subsidiaries of ITOCHU Corporation and Goldstone (a wholly owned investment platform of CITIC Securities))) pursuant to which the Subscriber has conditionally agreed to subscribe and the Company has conditionally agreed to allot and issue an aggregate of 1,302,500,000 new shares (the "Subscription Shares") at HKD1.19 per Subscription Share for an aggregate consideration of HKD1,549,975,000.

The Subscription Shares represent approximately 16.27% of the existing issued share capital of the Company and approximately 13.99% of the issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by the subscription. The Subscription Shares will be issued under a specific mandate and will rank pari passu with the existing shares.

As of the date of this report, the subscription has not been approved by the independent shareholders.

(c) On June 22, 2015, the Company obtained an uncommitted term loan facility of up to USD43,650,000 (equivalent of RMB268,107,000) from its bankers, which will be effective upon the satisfaction of specific conditions.

38 ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The directors consider the ultimate holding company of the Company as at March 31, 2015 to be Kong Bo Investment Limited, which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

39 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the IASB has issued a few amendments and a new standard which are not yet effective for the year ended March 31, 2015 and which have not been adopted in these financial statements. These include the following which may be relevant to the Group.

	Effective for accounting period beginning on or after (unless specified)
Amendments to IAS 19, Defined benefit plans: Employee contributions	July 1, 2014
Annual improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 cycle	July 1, 2014
Annual improvements to IFRSs 2011-2013 cycle	July 1, 2014
Annual improvements to IFRSs 2012-2014 cycle	January 1, 2016
Amendments to IFRS 11, Accounting for acquisitions of interests in joint operations	January 1, 2016
Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38, Clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation and amortisation	January 1, 2016
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture	January 1, 2016
Amendments to IAS 1, Disclosure initiative	January 1, 2016
IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers	January 1, 2018
IFRS 9, Financial instruments	January 1, 2018

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these amendments is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

In addition, the requirements of Part 9, "Accounts and Audit", of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) came into operation from the Company's first financial year commencing after March 31, 2015 (i.e. the Company's financial year which began on April 1, 2015) in accordance with section 358 of that Ordinance. The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the expected impact of the changes in the Companies Ordinance on the consolidated financial statements in the period of initial application of Part 9. So far it has concluded that the impact is unlikely to be significant and will primarily only affect the presentation and disclosure of information in the consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Gao Dekang (Chairman of the Board) ^(Notes 1 & 2) Ms. Mei Dong Ms. Gao Miaoqin Ms. Huang Qiaolian Mr. Mak Yun Kuen Mr. Rui Jinsong

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Dong Binggen ^(Notes 1, 2 & 3) Mr. Wang Yao ^(Notes 1, 2 & 3) Dr. Ngai Wai Fung ^(Note 3) Mr. Lian Jie ^(Note 3)

COMPANY SECRETARY AND QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT

Mr. Mak Yun Kuen

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Gao Dekang Mr. Mak Yun Kuen

SHARE LISTING

Place of Listing The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

STOCK CODE

3998

146

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Email: bosideng_ir@bosideng.com Tel: (852) 2866 6918 Fax: (852) 2866 6930

WEBSITES

http://company.bosideng.com http://www.bosideng.com

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONSULTANT

iPR Ogilvy Ltd.

REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square Hutchins Drive P.O. Box 2681 Grand Cayman KY1-1111 Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 5709, 57/F., The Center, 99 Queen's Road Central, Central, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman) Limited 4th Floor, Royal Bank House 24 Shedden Road, George Town Grand Cayman KY1-1110 Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited Shop 1712-1716, 17 Floor, Hopewell Centre 183 Queen's Road East Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL LEGAL ADVISORS AS TO

HONG KONG LAW

DLA Piper Hong Kong

AUDITORS

KPMG Certified Public Accountants

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China Limited, Changshu Sub-branch Bank of China Limited, Changshu Sub-branch China Construction Bank Corporation, Changshu Sub-branch China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd., Suzhou Sub-branch Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited DBS Bank Ltd., Hong Kong Branch Bank of Communications Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch

Notes:

- (1) Members of Remuneration Committee, Mr. Wang Yao is the Chairman of the Committee
- (2) Members of Nomination Committee, Mr. Gao Dekang is the Chairman of the Committee
- (3) Members of Audit Committee, Dr. Ngai Wai Fung is the Chairman of the Committee

SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

IMPORTANT DATES

Closure of Register of Members

August 26, 2015 to August 28, 2015 (for attending the Annual General Meeting) (both days inclusive)

September 3, 2015 to September 7, 2015 (for entitlement to the Final Dividends) (both days inclusive)

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

August 28, 2015

Dividends

Final Dividend:HKD1.0 cent per ordinary sharePayable on:On or around September 15, 2015

Financial Year End

March 31

Board Lot

2,000 Shares



波司登國際控股有限公司 Bosideng International Holdings Limited